
 

1 of 3 
 

 
NOTICE OF REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, FORT BEND 
COUNTY, TEXAS, WILL MEET IN REGULAR SESSION OPEN TO THE PUBLIC AS FOLLOWS: 

 
DATE:   Tuesday, May 19, 2015 

 
TIME:   7:00 p.m.  

 
PLACE:  Rosenberg City Hall 

City Hall Council Chamber 
2110 4th Street 
Rosenberg, Texas  77471 
 

PURPOSE:  Regular City Council Meeting, agenda as follows: 
 

The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time during the course of this meeting to discuss 
any of the matters listed below, as authorized by Title 5, Chapter 551, of the Texas Government Code. 
 
Call to order:  City Hall Council Chamber 
 
Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance. (Pastor Kevin K. Barber, Wellspring Church International, Richmond) 
 
Recognition and Presentation of Plaque to Departing Mayor Vincent M. Morales, Jr., and City Council Member Dwayne 
Grigar. (Linda Cernosek, City Secretary) 
 
Presentation of Certificate of Appreciation to Paula Warren and Donna Wall for Their Donation of a Rowing Machine to 
the Police Department. (Dallis Warren, Police Chief/Cody Daily, Police Lieutenant) 
 
Presentation of Proclamation Proclaiming the Month of May 2015 as Older Americans Month in the City of Rosenberg.  
(Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor) 
 
GENERAL COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE. 
Citizens who desire to address the City Council with comments of a general nature will be received at this time.  Each 
speaker is limited to three (3) minutes.  In accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, the City Council is restricted 
from discussing or taking action on items not listed on the agenda.  It is our policy to have all speakers identify themselves 
by providing their name and residential address when making comments. 
 
COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE FOR CONSENT AND REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS. 
Citizens who desire to address the City Council with regard to matters on the Consent Agenda or Regular Agenda will be 
received at the time the item is considered.  Each speaker is limited to three (3) minutes.  Comments or discussion by the 
City Council Members will only be made at the time the agenda item is scheduled for consideration.  It is our policy to 
have all speakers identify themselves by providing their name and residential address when making comments. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

1. Review of Consent Agenda. 
All Consent Agenda items listed are considered to be routine by the City Council and may be enacted by one 
(1) motion.  There will be no separate discussion of Consent Agenda items unless a City Council Member has 
requested that the item be discussed, in which case the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and 
considered in its normal sequence on the Regular Agenda. 
 

 A. Consideration of and action on Workshop Meeting Minutes for April 28, 2015, and Regular Meeting 
Minutes for May 05, 2015. (Linda Cernosek, City Secretary) 
 

 B. Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1968, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
negotiate and execute, for and on behalf of the City, a Consent to Assignment Agreement relating to 
the temporary assignment of water under the Brazos River Authority System Water Availability 
Agreement by and among the City, Brazos River Authority, and Gulf Coast Water Authority.  (John 
Maresh, Assistant City Manager of Public Services) 
 

 C. Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1967, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
negotiate and execute, for and on behalf of the City, a Temporary Amendment to the System Water 
Availability Agreement by and between the City and Brazos River Authority.  (John Maresh, Assistant 
City Manager of Public Services) 
 



 

2 of 3 
 

 D. Consideration of and action on approval of the issuance of Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District 
No. 144 (Summer Lakes and Summer Park) Refunding Tax Bonds, Series 2015, in an amount not to exceed 
$6,600,000. (Jeanne H. McDonald, Attorney) 
 

 E. Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1957, a Resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute 
and accept, for and on behalf of the City, a Special Warranty Deed being 12.12 acres of land, between 
the City of Rosenberg and Rosenberg Business Park, Ltd. (Travis Tanner, Executive Director of Community 
Development) 
 

REGULAR AGENDA 
 

[EXECUTION PAGE TO FOLLOW] 

2.  Consideration of and action on Ordinance No. 2015-14, an Ordinance canvassing the returns and 
declaring the results of the General Municipal Election held on May 09, 2015, within the City for the 
purpose of electing a Mayor and six (6) Council Members; and containing other provisions relating to 
the subject. (Linda Cernosek, City Secretary) 
 

3.  Consideration of and action on Ordinance No. 2015-15, an Ordinance canvassing the returns and 
declaring the results of the Special Election held May 09, 2015, in the City for the purpose of submitting 
to the duly qualified resident electors of the City consideration of one (1) Charter proposition, and 
declaring that said Ordinance shall be effective immediately upon its adoption. (Linda Cernosek, City 
Secretary) 
 

4.  Consideration of and action on Ordinance No. 2015-16, an Ordinance calling a Runoff Election on 
Saturday, June 13, 2015, for the purpose of electing Council Member District 3; providing for early voting 
and for Notice of the Election; and providing for other matters relating to the Election. (Linda Cernosek, 
City Secretary) 
 

5.  Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1962, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
negotiate and execute, for and on behalf of the City, an Engineering Services Agreement for the Bryan 
Road Reconstruction Project, by and between the City and Landtech Consultants, Inc., in an amount 
not to exceed $978,565. (John Maresh, Assistant City Manager of Public Services) 
 

6.  Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1920, a Resolution awarding Bid No. 2015-06 for 
construction of FM 2977 Elevated Water Storage Tank; and, authorizing the City Manager to negotiate 
and execute, for and on behalf of the City, appropriate documents and/or agreements regarding 
same. (John Maresh, Assistant City Manager of Public Services) 
 

7.  Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1969, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
execute, for and on behalf of the City, Amendment No. 1 to the Municipal Maintenance Agreement, 
by and between the City and the State of Texas, acting through the Texas Department of 
Transportation, for permission to provide supplemental right-of-way mowing and litter removal. (Rigo 
Calzoncin, Public Works Director) 
 

8.  Consideration of and action on Ordinance No. 2015-17, an Ordinance amending the Code of 
Ordinances by amending Chapter 6 – Buildings and Building Regulations, Article XVII - Single-Family and 
Accessory Dwelling Units; Sections 6-425 Definitions and 6-426 Single-family Dwelling Units; repealing all 
ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent or in conflict herewith; providing for severability; and 
providing an effective date. (Travis Tanner, Executive Director of Community Services) 
 

9.  Hold Executive Session to deliberate economic development negotiations regarding business prospects 
seeking to locate, stay or expand in the Rosenberg area pursuant to Section 551.087 of the Texas 
Government Code. 
 

10.  Adjourn Executive Session, reconvene into Regular Session, and take action as necessary as a result of 
Executive Session. 
 

11.  Consideration of action on Resolution No. R-1971, a Resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a 
Performance Agreement by and among the City, the Rosenberg Development Corporation, and 
Paragon Outlets Rosenberg Limited Partnership. 
 

12.  Announcements. 
 

13.  Adjournment. 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 

Recognition and Presentation of Plaque to 
Departing Mayor Vincent M. Morales, Jr., and 

City Council Member Dwayne Grigar. 



 
 
 
 
 
 

Presentation of Certificate of Appreciation to 
Paula Warren and Donna Wall for Their 

Donation of a Rowing Machine to the Police 
Department. 







 
 
 
 
 
 

Presentation of Proclamation Proclaiming 
the Month of May 2015 as Older Americans 

Month in the City of Rosenberg. 





General Comments from the Audience: 
 

Citizens who desire to address the City Council with comments 
of a general nature will be received at this time.  Each speaker 
is limited to three (3) minutes.  In accordance with the Texas 
Open Meetings Act, the City Council is restricted from 
discussing or taking action on items not listed on the agenda.  
It is our policy to have all speakers identify themselves by 
providing their name and residential address when making 
comments. 



Comments from the Audience for 
Consent and Regular Agenda Items: 

 
 

Citizens who desire to address the City Council with regard to 
matters on the Consent Agenda or Regular Agenda will be 
received at the time the item is considered.  Each speaker is 
limited to three (3) minutes.  Comments or discussion by the 
City Council Members will only be made at the time the agenda 
item is scheduled for consideration.  It is our policy to have all 
speakers identify themselves by providing their name and 
residential address when making comments. 



ITEM 1 
 

Review of Consent Agenda. 
 

All Consent Agenda items listed are considered to be routine by the 
City Council and may be enacted by one (1) motion.  There will be no 
separate discussion of Consent Agenda items unless a City Council 
Member has requested that the item be discussed, in which case the 
item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered in its 
normal sequence on the Regular Agenda. 



ITEM A 
 

Minutes: 
 

1. City Council Workshop Meeting Minutes – April 28, 2015 
2. Regular City Council Meeting Minutes – May 05, 2015 
 
 
 



PAGE 1 of 2 * WORKSHOP CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * APRIL 28, 2015 
***DRAFT*** 

 

CITY OF ROSENBERG  
CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING 

***DRAFT*** 
 

On this the 28th day of April, 2015, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas, 
met in a Special Workshop Session, in the Rosenberg City Hall Council Chamber, located at 2110 4th 
Street, Rosenberg, Texas. 
 
PRESENT 
Cynthia McConathy  Mayor Pro Tem 
William Benton   Councilor at Large, Position 1 
Jimmie J. Pena  Councilor, District 1  
Susan Euton   Councilor, District 2 
Dwayne Grigar  Councilor, District 3 
Amanda Barta   Councilor, District 4 
 
ABSENT 
Vincent M. Morales, Jr. Mayor 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
John Maresh    Assistant City Manager of Public Services 
Scott M. Tschirhart  City Attorney 
Anne Stark   Assistant City Secretary 
Jeff Trinker   Executive Director of Support Services 
Joyce Vasut   Executive Director of Administrative Services 
Tonya Palmer   Building Official 
Dallis Warren   Police Chief 
Tommy Havelka  Police Officer 
Wade Goates   Fire Chief 
Angela Fritz   Executive Director of Information Services 
James Lewis   Information Services Manager 
Steven Trevino   Information Technology Specialist 
Fernando DeLaGarza  Information Technology Specialist 
Melissa Pena   Project Director 
Kaye Supak   Executive Assistant 
 
During a City Council Workshop, the City Council does not take final action on the agenda items and 
any consideration of final action will be scheduled at a Regular or Special City Council Meeting. Public 
comments are welcomed at Regular or Special City Council Meetings. No public comments will be 
received at a Workshop Meeting. 
 
The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time during the course of this 
meeting to discuss any of the matters listed below, as authorized by Title 5, Chapter 551, of the Texas 
Government Code. 
 
CALL TO ORDER. 
Mayor Pro Tem McConathy called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.  
 

AGENDA 
 
1. REVIEW AND DISCUSS OLD RICHMOND ROAD AND JENNETTA STREET RECONSTRUCTION PROJECT 

ENGINEERING DESIGN PROGRESS REPORT, AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY TO DIRECT STAFF.  
Executive Summary: This item has been included to provide City Council with an update on the 
engineering design phase of the Old Richmond Road and Jennetta Street Reconstruction Project. 



PAGE 2 of 2 * WORKSHOP CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * APRIL 28, 2015 
***DRAFT*** 

 

 
Key Discussion Points: John Maresh, Assistant City Manager of Public Services, gave a brief 
background and introduced Thomas Kuykendall of CivilCorp to give an update on the project. The 
proposed roadway includes a turn lane and divider at the intersection of Jennetta Street and Old 
Richmond Road, stripping and replacing the pavement with concrete on both streets, improved 
drainage conditions by clearing ditches and replacing culverts, and a possible right of way 
adjustment at 8th Street to avoid confusion about stop conditions and reflect a traditional 
roadway. Estimated costs for the project as presented are $2.4M for Old Richmond Road 
improvements, $400K for Jennetta Street improvements, and $75K for the addition of a turn lane. 
After discussion, the general consensus of Council was to include the following cost estimates in 
the next update: 

 Three-way stops at both Jennetta Street and 8th Street intersections at Old Richmond Road 
 Cost of asphalt versus concrete, and associated maintenance 
 28 foot wide pavement (versus 24 feet) for bike paths 
 Right of way acquisitions 
 Sidewalk improvements 
 Curb and gutter 

 
2. REVIEW AND DISCUSS PRESENTATION ON ORGANIZATIONAL TECHNOLOGY PLAN, AND TAKE ACTION 

AS NECESSARY TO DIRECT STAFF.   
Executive Summary: Staff will present an overview of the City’s Organizational Technology Plan for 
City Council’s review and consideration.  The Technology Plan aligns the Technology Department’s 
planning efforts with the City’s strategic goals, and outlines key strategic areas for focus.  It lays a 
roadmap for development of the City’s digital city capabilities, and leverages best practices in IT 
management to provide better organizational controls and resource management, and improved 
systems and service delivery.   
 
Key Discussion Points: Angela Fritz, Executive Director Information Services, and James Lewis, 
Director of Technology, gave a presentation reflecting the City’s current technology standpoint 
versus that of our peers, and where the City should be in terms of a centralized enterprise system 
and its support. After some discussion, the general consensus of Council was in favor of the overall 
plan and understanding of its necessity. Council looks forward to delving into the specifics during 
the budget cycle.  
 

3. ADJOURNMENT. 
There being no further business, Mayor Pro Tem McConathy adjourned the meeting at 7:05 p.m. 
 

 
 
 

___________________________________________ 
        Linda Cernosek, TRMC, City Secretary  

 
 



PAGE 1 of 5 * REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * MAY 5, 2015 - ***DRAFT*** 
 

CITY OF ROSENBERG 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

***DRAFT*** 
 

On this the 5th day of May, 2015, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas, met 
in a Regular Session, in the Rosenberg City Hall Council Chamber, located at 2110 4th Street, 
Rosenberg, Texas. 
 
PRESENT 
Vincent M. Morales, Jr. Mayor 
William Benton  Councilor at Large, Position 1 
Cynthia McConathy  Councilor at Large, Position 2 
Jimmie J. Pena  Councilor, District 1  
Susan Euton   Councilor, District 2 
Dwayne Grigar  Councilor, District 3 
Amanda Barta  Councilor, District 4 

 
STAFF PRESENT 
Robert Gracia  City Manager 
Scott M. Tschirhart  City Attorney 
Linda Cernosek  City Secretary 
John Maresh    Assistant City Manager of Public Services 
Jeff Trinker   Executive Director of Support Services 
Joyce Vasut   Executive Director of Administrative Services 
Travis Tanner   Executive Director of Community Development 
Charles Kalkomey  City Engineer 

  Lisa Olmeda   Human Resources Director 
Dallis Warren   Police Chief 
Tracie Dunn   Assistant Police Chief 
Tommy Havelka  Police Officer 
Wade Goates  Fire Chief 
Angela Fritz   Executive Director of Information Services 
Randall Malik   Economic Development Director 

  James Lewis   Information Services Manager 
  Daniel Kelleher  Main Street Manager 
Kaye Supak   Executive Assistant 

 
The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time during the course of this 
meeting to discuss any of the matters listed below, as authorized by Title 5, Chapter 551, of the Texas 
Government Code. 

 
CALL TO ORDER. 
Mayor Morales called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE.  
Pastor Jason Martin, Calvary Baptist Church, Rosenberg, gave the invocation and led the pledge of 
allegiance to the flag. 
 
PRESENTATION OF PROCLAMATION PROCLAIMING THE WEEK OF MAY 10-16, 2015, AS NATIONAL POLICE 
WEEK IN THE CITY OF ROSENBERG.  
Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor, presented a Proclamation Proclaiming the Week of May 10-16, 2015, as 
National Police Week in the City of Rosenberg. 
 
PRESENTATION OF PROCLAMATION PROCLAIMING THE WEEK OF MAY 17-23, 2015, AS NATIONAL PUBLIC 
WORKS WEEK IN THE CITY OF ROSENBERG.  
Mayor Morales presented a Proclamation Proclaiming the Week of May 17-23, 2015, as National Public 
Works Week in the City of Rosenberg. 
 



PAGE 2 of 5 * REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * MAY 5, 2015 - ***DRAFT*** 
 

PRESENTATION OF PROCLAMATION PROCLAIMING THE MONTH OF MAY 2015 AS MOTORCYCLE SAFETY 
AND AWARENESS MONTH IN THE CITY OF ROSENBERG.  
Mayor Morales presented a Proclamation Proclaiming the Month of May 2015 as Motorcycle Safety 
and Awareness Month in the City of Rosenberg. 
 
PRESENTATION OF PROCLAMATION PROCLAIMING THE MONTH OF MAY 2015 AS NATIONAL 
PRESERVATION MONTH IN THE CITY OF ROSENBERG.  
Mayor Morales presented a Proclamation Proclaiming the Month of May 2015 as National Preservation 
Month in the City of Rosenberg. 
 
PRESENTATION OF AWARDS TO THE WINNERS OF THE ROSENBERG ARCHITECTURAL APPRECIATION 
PHOTOGRAPHY CONTEST.  
Mayor Morales presented Awards to the Winners of the Rosenberg Architectural Appreciation 
Photography Contest: 
 
 Keith Marrero 1st Place Color photo of the Cole Theater 
 Srini Sandarrajan 2nd Place black & white photo of the Vogelsang & BR Provisions Building 
 Elvia Morales 3rd Place black & white photo of Old City Hall 
   

 

PRESENTATION OF ROSENBERG IMAGE COMMITTEE BEAUTIFICATION AND RENOVATION AWARDS.  
William Benton, Councilor, presented Rosenberg Image Committee Beautification and Renovation 
Awards to: 
 
 Rogelio and Lorena Bolanos 2260 Moss Bluff Lane 
 Cheryl Richardson 2026 Briar Ridge Drive 
 Mario and Maria Valencia 1014 Frances Drive 
 Jerry and Sandra Wheeler 1314 Elizabeth Avenue 
 Discount Auto Care and Tire 4307 Avenue H 
  

 

GENERAL COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE. 
Citizens who desire to address the City Council with comments of a general nature will be received at 
this time.  Each speaker is limited to three (3) minutes.  In accordance with the Texas Open Meetings 
Act, the City Council is restricted from discussing or taking action on items not listed on the agenda.  It is 
our policy to have all speakers identify themselves by providing their name and residential address 
when making comments. 
 
 James Urbish, 2514 Cypress Lane, Rosenberg, Texas 77471, thanked Mayor and Council for their 

service in office, and congratulated them for a job well done. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

1.  Review of Consent Agenda. 
All Consent Agenda items listed are considered to be routine by the City Council and may be 
enacted by one (1) motion.  There will be no separate discussion of Consent Agenda items unless 
a City Council Member has requested that the item be discussed, in which case the item will be 
removed from the Consent Agenda and considered in its normal sequence on the Regular 
Agenda. 
 

 A.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES FOR APRIL 15, 2015, AND 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES FOR APRIL 21, 2015.  
 

 B.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON A FINAL PLAT OF PARK PLACE BOULEVARD STREET 
DEDICATION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF 2.3580 ACRES OUT OF THE ROBERT E. HANDY 
SURVEY, A-187, IN THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS (FORT BEND 
COUNTY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 144).   
Executive Summary: The Final Plat of Park Place Boulevard Street Dedication consists of 2.358 
acres of proposed public right-of-way.  The Plat is located off of Reading Road and August 
Green Drive, in the City Limits and in Fort Bend County MUD No. 144.  It extends from the 
existing portion of Park Place Boulevard abutting the Waterford Park Apartments to the 



PAGE 3 of 5 * REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * MAY 5, 2015 - ***DRAFT*** 
 

roundabout where August Green Drive currently terminates.   

This is a proposed eighty-foot (80’) collector street right-of-way that will provide a needed 
secondary access to and from the subdivision.  The Plat is in accordance with the Revised 
Land Use and Parcel Plan for MUD No. 144 and is not in conflict with any applicable 
regulations.  The Preliminary Plat of this subdivision was approved by the Planning Commission 
on August 20, 2014, and the Commission subsequently recommended approval to City 
Council of the Final Plat on April 15, 2015. 

Staff recommends approval of the Final Plat of Park Place Boulevard Street Dedication. 
 

 C.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON A FINAL PLAT OF RIVERS MIST SECTION THREE, BEING 
A SUBDIVISION OF 31.51 ACRES OUT OF THE WM. LUSK SURVEY, A-276, IN FORT BEND 
COUNTY, TEXAS.  (FORT BEND COUNTY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 158):  ALSO BEING 
A PARTIAL REPLAT OF RESTRICTED RESERVE ‘C’, BLOCK 1, RIVERS MIST SECTION TWO, PLAT 
NO. 2015008851 F.B.C.P.R.; 73 LOTS,  3 BLOCKS AND 5 RESERVES (13.2161 ACRES).   
Executive Summary: The Final Plat of Rivers Mist Section Three is located off of River Delta Lane 
and Rohan Road, south of Rivers Mist Sections One and Two.  The Plat is in the Extraterritorial 
Jurisdiction (ETJ) and in Fort Bend County MUD No. 158. 

The Plat consists of 73 lots, four (4) blocks, and five (5) reserves with a total of 13.2161 acres.  All 
proposed lots are a minimum of sixty feet (60’) in width.  This is in accordance with the 
approved Land Plan for Rivers Mist dated May 2006. 

The Preliminary Plat of this subdivision was approved by the Planning Commission on 
March 18, 2015.  The Final Plat is consistent with the approved Preliminary Plat and meets 
all applicable regulations of the City of Rosenberg.  The Commission recommended 
approval to City Council of the Final Plat on April 15, 2015.  Staff recommends approval of 
the Final Plat of Rivers Mist Section Three. 
 

 Action:  Councilor McConathy made a motion, seconded by Councilor Barta, to approve 
Consent Agenda Items A, B, and C. The motion carried by a unanimous vote of those present. 
 

COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE FOR CONSENT AND REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS. 
Citizens who desire to address the City Council with regard to matters on the Consent Agenda or 
Regular Agenda will be received at the time the item is considered.  Each speaker is limited to three (3) 
minutes.  Comments or discussion by the City Council Members will only be made at the time the 
agenda item is scheduled for consideration.  It is our policy to have all speakers identify themselves by 
providing their name and residential address when making comments. 
 

REGULAR AGENDA 
 

2.  HOLD PUBLIC HEARING REGARDING PROPOSED FINANCING TO BE ISSUED BY THE CLIFTON HIGHER 
EDUCATION FINANCE CORPORATION IN A MAXIMUM AMOUNT OF $27,000,000 FOR THE PURPOSE 
OF FINANCING AN APPROXIMATELY 105,000 SQUARE FOOT EDUCATION BUILDING AND RELATED 
SITE WORK (THE “PROJECT”) FOR THE TSTC FOUNDATION (THE “FOUNDATION”), WITH THE PROJECT 
BUILDING TO BE LEASED TO THE TEXAS STATE TECHNICAL COLLEGE SYSTEM (“TSTC”).   
Executive Summary:  This public hearing is required by law because an education facilities 
corporation, more specifically the Clifton Higher Education Finance Corporation, is issuing tax 
exempt financing to benefit Texas State Technical College (TSTC) in Rosenberg.  The site consists 
of approximately eighty (80) acres of land located off Interstate 69 between FM 2218 and Louise 
Street.  However, this Agenda item deals with financing of only the initial 42 acres of the 
property that is being developed; TSTC will develop the property in phases.  While this financing 
will not represent debt of the City of Rosenberg, the Internal Revenue Code requires a public 
hearing and subsequent approval by the City since the Project site is in the City Limits.  In 
accordance with applicable laws, notice of the hearing was published in the newspaper more 
than fourteen (14) days before the meeting date.  TSTC representatives will be available to 
discuss and answer questions regarding this Agenda item. 
 
 Sharon Wallingford, Richmond resident, has been involved with TSTC in the past, thinks highly 



PAGE 4 of 5 * REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * MAY 5, 2015 - ***DRAFT*** 
 

of the program, and is very supportive their project in Rosenberg. 
 
Action: The public hearing was opened at 7:33:56 p.m. There being no comments from the 
audience, the public hearing was closed at 7:34:10 p.m. 
 

3.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1963, A RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF TAX 
EXEMPT FINANCING TO BE UNDERTAKEN BY THE CLIFTON HIGHER EDUCATION FINANCE 
CORPORATION FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE TSTC FOUNDATION AND THE TEXAS STATE TECHNICAL 
COLLEGE SYSTEM.   
Executive Summary:  As discussed in the previous Agenda item, this item/resolution is required 
by law because the Clifton Higher Education Finance Corporation (Corporation) is issuing tax 
exempt financing to benefit Texas State Technical College (TSTC) in Rosenberg.  As discussed, 
the overall site consists of approximately eighty (80) acres of land located off of Interstate 69 
between FM 2218 and Louise Street.  This Agenda item deals with financing of only the initial 
forty-two (42) acres of the property that is being developed; TSTC will develop the property in 
phases.  While the financing will not represent debt of the City of Rosenberg, the Internal 
Revenue Code requires a hearing and subsequent approval by the City since the project site is 
in the City.  TSTC representatives will be available to discuss and answer questions regarding this 
Agenda item.  The City Attorney has also reviewed and has no objections to the item. 
 
Details of the process can be found in the memorandum included in the agenda packet from 
Dan Pleitz, attorney representing TSTC in this transaction.  This Agenda item does not represent 
the approval of anything other than the Corporation’s financing for the project.  TSTC is currently 
going through the platting process with the City and complying with applicable standards.  Staff 
recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1963 as presented. 
 
Key Discussion Points: Travis Tanner gave a brief overview of the item and introduced 
representatives from TSTC to answer questions. Cliff Whittingstall from PBK Architects gave a 
presentation regarding the proposed site plans for the campus. The presentation will be 
updated and made available on the Rosenberg Development Corporation website. The 
general consensus of the Council was in support of the Resolution, and of the plan as a whole. 
 
Action: Councilor Barta made a motion, seconded by Councilor Euton to approve Resolution 
No. R-1963, a Resolution in support of tax exempt financing to be undertaken by the Clifton 
Higher Education Finance Corporation for the benefit of the TSTC Foundation and the Texas 
State Technical College System. The motion carried by a unanimous vote. 
 

4.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1964, A RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF 
HOUSE BILL NO. 3634 RELATING TO THE AUTHORITY OF A MUNICIPALITY TO IMPOSE A LOCAL TAX 
ON THE SALE OF CERTAIN MOTOR FUEL AND TO THE USE OF THE TAX REVENUE BY THE 
MUNICIPALITY; AUTHORIZING PENALTIES.  
Executive Summary:  This Agenda item has been included to provide City Council an 
opportunity to offer its support to Texas House Bill No. 3634 which would allow for municipalities 
to levy a tax on certain motor fuels and further directs the resulting tax revenue to be used on 
roadways and roadway signage. 
 
Key Discussion Points: Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor gave an overview of the item. After some 
discussion, the general consensus of Council was not in favor of the Resolution. Mayor Morales 
then tabled the item. 
 
Action:  Item was tabled. 
 

5.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1961, A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE 
CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY, A PIPELINE CROSSING 
AGREEMENT RELATED TO THE NORTH SIDE WATER LINE IMPROVEMENT PROJECT – PHASE II, BY AND 
BETWEEN THE CITY AND UNION PACIFIC RAILROAD COMPANY, IN THE AMOUNT OF $6,700.00  
Executive Summary:  On December 02, 2014, City Council approved Resolution No. R-1878 
authorizing the City Manager to execute an Agreement for Community Development Block 
Grant funding for the North Side Water Line Improvement Project - Phase II (Project).  The Project 



PAGE 5 of 5 * REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * MAY 5, 2015 - ***DRAFT*** 
 

 
 

____________________________________________ 
     Linda Cernosek, TRMC, City Secretary  

 

includes the replacement of an existing six (6) inch water line located in the 6th Street right-of-
way and crossing both the BNSF and Union Pacific railroad rights-of-way (ROW) between 
Avenue F and Avenue E.  As a requirement of crossing railroad ROW, the City must execute a 
separate Pipeline Crossing Agreement (Agreement) from each railroad for the replacement 
water line.  This particular Agreement is with the Union Pacific Railroad Company for access 
upon their premises.  The License will allow for the installation of a 12-inch PVC potable water 
line within a 20-inch steel casing.  The Pipeline Crossing Agreement fee is $6,700.00. The 
Contractor that is awarded the construction bid will be responsible to obtain the Railroad 
Protective Liability Insurance. A similar agreement with the BNSF Railway Company was 
approved by City Council with Resolution No. R-1960 on April 21, 2015. 
 
Staff and the City Attorney have reviewed the Agreement and recommend approval of 
Resolution No. R-1961 as presented. 
 
Key Discussion Points: John Maresh, Assistant City Manager of Public Services read the Executive 
Summary and explained that the pipeline will go under the railroad tracks. 
 
Action: Councilor McConathy made a motion, seconded by Councilor Euton to approve 
Resolution No. R-1961, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute, for and on behalf 
of the City, a Pipeline Crossing Agreement related to the North Side Water Line Improvement 
Project – Phase II, by and between the City and Union Pacific Railroad Company, in the amount 
of $6,700.00. The motion carried by a unanimous vote. 
 

6.  HOLD EXECUTIVE SESSION TO CONSULT WITH CITY ATTORNEY ON PENDING LITIGATION 
REGARDING TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION V. ROSENBERG EMINENT DOMAIN 
PROCEEDINGS PURSUANT TO SECTION 551.071 OF THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE; TO DELIBERATE 
THE POTENTIAL PURCHASE, EXCHANGE, LEASE, OR VALUE OF REAL PROPERTY PURSUANT TO 
SECTION 551.072 OF THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE; AND, TO DELIBERATE PERSONNEL MATTERS 
REGARDING THE EMPLOYMENT, EVALUATION AND DUTIES OF THE CITY MANAGER PURSUANT TO 
SECTION 551.074 OF THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE.  
Action: Councilor Barta made a motion, seconded by Councilor Benton to adjourn to Executive 
Session. The motion carried by a unanimous vote. 
 
An Executive Session was held to consult with City Attorney on pending litigation regarding 
Texas Department of Transportation v. Rosenberg eminent domain proceedings pursuant to 
Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code; to deliberate the potential purchase, 
exchange, lease, or value of real property pursuant to Section 551.072 of the Texas Government 
Code; and, to deliberate personnel matters regarding the employment, evaluation and duties 
of the City Manager pursuant to Section 551.074 of the Texas Government Code. 
 

7.  ADJOURN EXECUTIVE SESSION, RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION, AND TAKE ACTION AS 
NECESSARY AS A RESULT OF EXECUTIVE SESSION. 
Mayor Morales adjourned the Executive Session and reconvened into Regular Session at 8:52 
p.m. 
 

8.  ANNOUNCEMENTS. 
• The Downtown Chocolate Walk will be help on Sunday, May 17th, from 12:00 p.m. – 5:00 

p.m. 
• A City of Rosenberg National Day of Prayer event will be held on Thursday, May 7, 2015 

at 7:00 p.m. at the City Hall Gazebo 
 

9.  ADJOURNMENT. 
There being no further business Mayor Morales adjourned the meeting at 8:53 p.m. 
 



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
May 19, 2015 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

B 
Resolution No. R-1968 – Consent to Assignment of the System Water 
Availability Agreement 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1968, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
negotiate and execute, for and on behalf of the City, a Consent to Assignment Agreement relating to the 
temporary assignment of water under the Brazos River Authority System Water Availability Agreement by 
and among the City, Brazos River Authority, and Gulf Coast Water Authority.  

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:    

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[X] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 

 
1. Resolution No. R-1968 
2. Dominguez Correspondence – 04-29-15 
3. System Water Availability Agreement – 10-18-07 
4. Resolution No. R-1946 – 04-07-15 
5. Resolution No. R-1749 – 02-04-14 
6. Resolution No. R-1617 – 05-01-12 
7. Resolution No. R-1326 – 06-07-11 
8. Resolution No. R-1311 – 04-19-11 
9. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 04-07-15 
10. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 02-04-14 
11. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 05-01-12 
12. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 06-07-11 
13. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 04-19-11 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 

 
 
John Maresh 
Assistant City Manager of 
Public Services 

Reviewed by:   

[X] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services  
[   ] City Attorney     
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

On April 07, 2015, City Council approved Resolution No. R-1946, authorizing the City Manager to execute an 
Amended and Restated Agreement relating to the temporary assignment of the City’s Brazos River Authority 
(BRA) surface water supply to the Gulf Coast Water Authority (GCWA) at the same rate paid to the BRA. The 
assignment is subject to BRA consent on an annual basis. The Temporary Consent to Assignment Agreement 
has been approved for each of the prior years of 2011 - 2014.    
 
The City’s annual allocation of BRA surface water is four thousand five hundred (4,500) acre feet and the 
Agreement under consideration provides the BRA consent to assign the full amount for the time period from the 
effective date of the Agreement to December 31, 2015.  
 
The GCWA is required to reimburse the City for the assigned water at the same rate charged by the BRA. For 



FY2015, the BRA rate is $69.50/acre foot for a total of $312,750.00. By assigning the surface water allocation to 
GCWA, the City will be able to recoup this full amount. These dollars will be placed back into the Subsidence 
(GRP) Fund to help fund the alternative water supply internal projects currently under design/construction and 
the Brazosport Water Authority Water Supply Agreement which are all necessary to comply with the Fort Bend 
Subsidence District unfunded mandate to reduce groundwater withdrawals by thirty percent (30%) effective 
October 01, 2016. 
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1968, with the Agreement attached as Exhibit “A”, as 
presented. 
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-1968 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
NEGOTIATE AND EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, A CONSENT TO ASSIGNMENT AGREEMENT 
RELATING TO THE TEMPORARY ASSIGNMENT OF WATER UNDER 
THE BRAZOS RIVER AUTHORITY SYSTEM WATER AVAILABILITY 
AGREEMENT BY AND AMONG THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, 
BRAZOS RIVER AUTHORITY, AND GULF COAST WATER 
AUTHORITY. 
 

*  *  *  *  * 
 
 WHEREAS, the City has received a request for the assignment of certain Brazos 
River Authority water allocations from the Gulf Coast Water Authority due to additional 
needs; and,  
 
 WHEREAS, the City approved Resolution No. R-1326 on June 07, 2011, 
Resolution No. R-1479 on May 01, 2012, Resolution No. R-1617 on February 19, 2013, 
Resolution No. R-1749 on February 04, 2014, and Resolution No. R-1946 on April 07, 
2015, authorizing assignment of a portion of the City’s annual allocation of Brazos River 
Authority water supply; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City currently has a surplus allocation of surface water available 
from the Brazos River Authority for the year 2015; now, therefore, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 
 
 Section 1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to negotiate and execute a 

Consent to Assignment Agreement (Agreement) relating to the temporary assignment of 

water under the Brazos River Authority System Water Availability Agreement, by and 

among the City of Rosenberg, Texas, Brazos River Authority, and Gulf Coast Water 

Authority. 

 Section 2. A copy of said Agreement is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and 

made a part hereof for all purposes. 

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________ 2015. 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, CITY SECRETARY   Vincent M. Morales, Jr., MAYOR 



Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-1968 
Page 1 of 2



Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-1968 
Page 2 of 2





I ql 

SYSTEM WATER AVAl LAB1 LlTY AGREEMENT 

Brazos River Authority 
P. 0. Box 7555 
Waco, Texas 7671 4-7555 
(254) 776-1 441 

CITY OF ROSENBERG 



SYSTEM WATER AVAILABILITY AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN 

BRAZOS RIVER AUTHORITY 
AND 

CITY OF ROSENBERG 

AGREEMENT made and entered into this the &day of D r h  Le, 
2007, by and between BRAZOS RIVER AUTHORITY ("BRA"), a river authority of 
the State of Texas, and CITY OF ROSENBERG ("Purchaser") of Fort Bend County, 
Texas. 

1. RECITALS. BRA owns and operates various lakes in the Brazos River 
Basin. BRA also has entered into contracts with the United States of America by virtue 
of which it has obtained the right to utilize for water supply purposes a portion of the 
usable storage space in various lakes owned and operated by the United States Army 
Corps of Engineers. BRA is authorized by the State of Texas to store State waters in the 
lakes owned by BRA and various lakes owned and operated by the United States Army 
Corps of Engineers in the Brazos River Basin, hereinafter collectively called the "System", 
and to make such stored waters available for beneficial use. 

BRA is authorized to operate the System as a hydrologic unit pursuant to an 
order of the Texas Water Commission (formerly, Texas Natural Resource Conservation 
Commission "TNRCC", now Texas Commission on Environmental Quality "TCEQ) issued 
on July 23, 1964 ("System Operation Order"). The Final Determination of All Claims of 
Water Riqhts in the Brazos River Basin and the San lacinto-Brazos Coastal Basin 
Maintained bv the Brazos River Authority, Fort Bend Countv W.C.I.D. No. 1 and 
Galveston Countv Water Authority CFinal Determination") issued on June 26, 1985, by 
TCEQ clarified and amplified the System Operation Order. Under the System Operation 
Order as adjudicated by the Final Determination, BRA is authorized to operate the 
System as a hydrologic unit to more efficiently utilize the reservoirs that make up the 
System to make water available to meet the needs of BRA'S customers. 

Purchaser wishes to contract for BRA to make available 4,500 acre-feet of water 
per Fiscal Year under the terms of this Agreement pursuant to the System-wide pricing 
methodology, and BRA agrees to make water available to Purchaser pursuant to the 
terms and conditions herein provided. 

2. DEFINITIONS. 
a) 
b) 

The term "Agreement" means this agreement. 
The term "Annual Contracted Amount" shall mean the total volume, 

expressed in acre-feet per Fiscal Year, which BRA agrees to make available and 
Purchaser agrees to purchase. For this Agreement, the amount is 4,500 acre-feet. 

c) The term "BRA" shall mean Brazos River Authority. 

L:\Contracts\Water Contracts\LONG-TERM\City of Rosenberg-CD-07.doc 



d) The term "Board" shall mean the Board of Directors of Brazos River 
Authority. 

e) The term "Budgeted Cost of Service" shall mean all reasonable economic 
requirements to develop, operate, maintain, protect and/or expand the System. Specific 
costs include, but are not limited to, personnel, operations, capital, infrastructure, 
financing, administration and overhead. 

The term 'Fiscal Year" shall mean BRA's fiscal year from September 1 
through August 31, or such other annual fiscal year period as BRA may later determine. 

The term "Industrial Use" shall mean the use of water in processes 
designed to convert materials of a lower order of value into forms having greater 
usability and commercial value, including commercial feedlot operations, commercial fish 
production, and the development of power by means other than hydroelectric. 

The term "Irrigation Use" shall mean the use of water for the irrigation of 
crops, trees, and pastureland, including, but not limited to, golf courses and parks which 
do not receive water through a municipal distribution system. 

The term "Mining Use" shall mean the use of water for mining processes 
including hydraulic use, drilling, washing sand and gravel, and oil field repressuring. 

The term "Municipal Use" shall mean the use of potable water within a 
community or municipality and its environs for domestic, recreational, commercial, or 
industrial purposes or for the watering of golf courses, parks and parkways. 

k) The term "Overuse" shall mean withdrawal or release of water in excess 
of the amount contracted. 

1) The term "Purchaser" shall mean City of Rosenberg. 
m) The term "Reuse" shall mean the use of any portion of any of the water 

sold hereunder that remains unconsumed after the water is used for the purpose 
authorized herein. 

n) The term "System" shall mean BRA'S Water Supply System and shall 
include the BRA's facilities, infrastructure and properties insofar as they are related to 
making water available from the BRA together with all future extensions, improvements, 
enlargements, and additions to and replacements of the System, and all replacements 
thereof whether from surface water supplies, groundwater, or a combination thereof, 
unless specifically excluded from the System by resolution of the Board. 

The term "System Operation Order" shall mean that certain order of the 
TCEQ or its predecessor dated July 23, 1964, as adjudicated by order of the TCEQ or its 
predecessor on June 26, 1985, in the Final Determination of all Claims of Water Riqhts in 
the Brazos River Basin and the San Jacinto-Brazos Coastal Basin Maintained bv the 
Brazos River Authoritv, Fort Bend Countv W.C.I.D. No. 1 and Galveston Countv Water 

9 

g) 

h) 

i) 

j) 

0) 

Authority; 
PI The term "System Rate" shall mean the rate per acre-foot of water 

established by BRA from time to time under the system-wide pricing methodology for 
water made available to Purchaser from the System under this Agreement. 

3. EFFECTIVE DATE. The effective date of this Agreement is October 1, 
2007. 

4. AVAILABILITY OF WATER. While this Agreement remains in force, 
BRA agrees to make available to Purchaser for withdrawal from the System an amount 
of water not to exceed the Annual Contracted Amount. Such water will be withdrawn 

2 
L:\Contracts\Water Contracts\LONG-TERM\City of Rosenberg-CD-07.doc 



from the System and accounted for by BRA as provided by the System Operation Order, 
as modified by the Final Determination. Purchaser agrees that it is contracting to have 
water made available to it in amounts and at such times and locations as are provided 
for herein and that the water to be provided under this Agreement is subject to local 
availability. Purchaser acquires no property right in the water made available to it under 
this Agreement beyond the right to have the water made available to it for diversion and 
use under the terms of this Agreement. BRA agrees to make water available from the 
System, and Purchaser acquires no rights or interests in any of the water supply sources 
that comprise the System above and beyond those rights that accrue to it as a customer 
of the System under this Agreement. Purchaser represents, and BRA relies on such 
representation, that all water to be made available by BRA under this Agreement to 
Purchaser shall be used solely for municipal purposes. Utilization of water supplied under 
this agreement for other purposes shall be deemed a breach of contract and grounds for 
termination of contract. 

5. DATE AND PLACE OF PAYMENTS. Payments to be made hereunder 
shall be made at BRA'S office in Waco, McLennan County, Texas. BRA contemplates 
that by the first day of each Fiscal Year (currently September 1) it will have adopted 
budgets for BRA for said Fiscal Year and established the System Rate for said Fiscal 
Year. Payments for water made available each Fiscal Year may be made under one of 
three payment options from which Purchaser will select a t  the beginning of each Fiscal 
Year. Annual payments shall be made on or before September 15 of each year. 
Quarterly payments shall be made on or before September 15, December 15, March 15, 
and June 15 of each year. Monthly payments shall be made on or before the fifteenth 
of each month each year. Quarterly payments or monthly payments shall include a 
multiplier to be applied to the annual payment to allow BRA to recover interest lost on 
any unpaid balance plus a service charge for administrative costs, including but not 
limited to costs involving the billing, accounting, and collecting for the quarterly or 
monthly payments. The multiplier to recover lost interest revenue and the service 
charge for administrative costs shall be determined on an annual basis using the method 
approved by the Board and shall be just and reasonable. Because the effective date of 
this Agreement is October 1, 2007, the amount of water available to Purchaser and 
the payment owed by Purchaser will be prorated for the remaining eleven (11) 
months of Fiscal Year 2008. 

If, in accordance with Section 6b) of this Agreement, BRA increases the payment 
due from Purchaser during a Fiscal Year, it shall notify Purchaser of any increased 
amount of payment due for the remainder of the Fiscal Year and the increased amount 
shall be paid by Purchaser (i) within 30 days after receipt of notice of the increase if 
Purchaser has already paid all amounts otherwise due to BRA for such Fiscal Year, or (ii) 
in approximately equal installments added to any further installment amounts owed by 
Purchaser for the remainder of such Fiscal Year if Purchaser has selected a payment 
option which resulted in Purchaser still having payments due to BRA during the 
remainder of such Fiscal Year. 

6. UNCONDITIONAL NATURE OF PAYMENT OBLIGATION; PRICE. 
a) Purchaser unconditionally agrees to pay BRA annually for the water 

agreed to be made available to Purchaser hereunder at a price equal to the product of 

3 
L:\Contracts\Water Conbacts\LONG-TERM\City of Rosenberg-CD-07.d~ 



I 

multiplying the System Rate times the Annual Contracted Amount regardless of whether 
the full Annual Contracted Amount of water is diverted and used by Purchaser. 

The System Rate shall be established annually by the Board; it shall be 
calculated by utilizing a Budgeted Cost of Service basis considering the water supply 
System costs and the acre-feet of long term water sold under contract; and it shall be 
just reasonable and non-discriminatory, Purchaser shall be provided 15 days notice of 
the proposed amount and the meeting date at  which the System Rate shall be 
established and shall be provided an invoice before the payment is due and payable. 
The System Rate has been established by the Board at a rate of $54.50 per acre-foot of 
water agreed to be made available annually to Purchaser for the current Fiscal Year. 
BRA shall not increase the System Rate other than on a Fiscal Year basis, which 
determines the system rate for the following Fiscal Year under this Agreement, except 
for unforeseeable reasons of a serious or substantial nature. Such reasons include Force 
Majeure, government legislation or regulations, or permit requirements. 

b) 

7. SOURCE OF PAYMENTS. The payments to be made hereunder by 
Purchaser shall constitute operating expenses of Purchaser's water works system or 
Purchaser's combined water w o r k  and sewer system. Purchaser shall charge rates for 
services of its water w o r k  system or its combined water works and sewer systems that 
will be sufficient to pay the operating and maintenance expenses thereof, including the 
payments provided for hereunder, and the interest on and principal of, as the same 
come due and mature, obligations issued by Purchaser now or hereafter payable from 
the revenues of said system or systems. 

8. INTEREST ON PAST DUE PAYMENT. I n  the event of failure of 
Purchaser to make any payment to BRA provided to be made in this Agreement a t  the 
time when same shall be due, the past due payment shall bear interest a t  the lesser of 
the highest rate allowed by applicable law or 18 percent per year. 

9. REMEDIES FOR NONPAYMENT OR DEFAULT. Should Purchaser 
fail to make any payment to BRA when due hereunder or otherwise be in default under 
this Agreement, BRA at its sole option and in addition to and without impairing any 
other remedy available to it on account of the default, may elect to either (i) suspend its 
duty to make available water to Purchaser under this Agreement or (ii) terminate this 
Agreement, by providing written notice of such termination delivered to Purchaser on or 
before 30 days before the date specified in said notice of termination, provided that the 
nonpayment or other default with respect to which notice of termination of this 
Agreement has been given, shall not be cured by the date specified in such notice. 
Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed in any manner so as to abridge, limit, or 
deprive either party hereunto of any means which i t  would otherwise have of enforcing 
any right or remedy either in law or in equity for breach of any of the provisions hereof. 

I O .  REMEDIES FOR OVERUSE. Purchaser recognizes that any diversion 
of water in excess of its Annual Contracted Amount may impact BRA'S ability to make 
available water to BRA's other raw water customers. Purchaser agrees that if for any 
reason i t  needs to exceed the Annual Contracted Amount, Purchaser will give written 
notice to BRA 30 days in advance of the need for such additional water and in such 

4 
L:\Contracts\Water Contracts\LONG-TERM\City of Rosenberg-CD-07.doc 



notice will state the reason for the additional need, the amount of water needed to be 
made available, and the duration of the need. BRA, in its sole discretion, may make all 
or a portion of the requested water available. Nothing contained herein shall obligate 
the BRA to provide water in excess of the Annual Contracted Amount nor should 
Purchaser rely on additional water being made available in excess of the Annual 
Contracted Amount except as approved by BRA under the terms stated herein. 

I n  the event that BRA determines that it can make all or a portion of the 
requested water available without adversely impacting its ability to make water available 
to its other customers, Purchaser shall pay for such water to be made available in 
advance of diversion a t  a rate that is equal to twice the current System Rate. 

I n  the event Purchaser fails to notify BRA of its need for additional water to be 
made available, and exceeds the Annual Contracted Amount or should Purchaser, afier 
notification of BRA and BRA'S determination that additional water is not available for 
Purchaser's use, nonetheless exceeds the Annual Contracted Amount, BRA may, a t  its 
option, charge the Purchaser for the overuse a t  a rate of three times the System Rate 
and/or cancel this Agreement by providing written notice of such cancellation delivered 
to Purchaser on or before thirty (30) days before the date specified in said notice of 
cancellation. 

I n  the event Purchaser uses water in excess of its Annual Contracted Amount 
twice in any five-year period, BRA may, if such additional water can be made available 
on a long-term basis, cause this Agreement to be amended to increase the Annual 
Contracted Amount to the maximum total annual amount requested by Purchaser in any 
one Fiscal Year. Such Amendment shall not excuse Purchaser from paying for any water 
used in excess of the amount agreed to be made available under this Agreement prior to 
amendment of this Agreement a t  the. appropriate rate under the paragraph above. 
Following any such amendment, Purchaser shall pay for all water to be made available 
to Purchaser under this Agreement and such amendment at the System Rate. 

Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed in any manner so as to abridge, 
.limit, or deprive either party hereunto of any means which it would otherwise have of 
enforcing any right or remedy either in law or in equity for breach of any of the 
provisions hereof. 

11. DIVERSION RATE. 
a) At  least seven (7) working days before it shall desire to divert water 

agreed to be made available pursuant to this Agreement, Purchaser shall notify BRA of 
the date on which it desires to start pumping water a t  the diversion point, the minimum 
number of:days it will continue pumping, and the rate at which it desires to pump. BRA 
shall make releases of water from System a t  such times and in such amounts as will 
make water available for Purchaser to pump water continuously a t  the diversion point(s) 
a t  the rate thus specified without violation of water rights of others. When Purchaser 
shall desire to discontinue pumping or to change the rates a t  which it shall be able to 
pump water continuously at the diversion point(s), it shall notify BRA at least two (4 
working days in advance of the date on which pumping is to be discontinued or on 
which the rate a t  which it is to be able to pump is to be changed, specifying in said 

5 
L:\Contracts\Water Contra&\LONG-TERM\City of Rosenberg-CD-07.doc 



notice the rate at which it desires to be able to pump continuously thereafter, and BRA 
shall discontinue releases or appropriately modify the releases made by it so as to make 
water available for Purchaser to pump continuously at the new rate, beginning on the 
date specified in said notice. Notices under this Section l l.a, Diversion Rate, may be 
given by telephone but must be confirmed in writing within two (2) days. 

The pumping rates specified in the notices given under provisions of 
Section l L a ,  above, shall be expressed in cubic feet per second (cfs). 

The number of days for which pumping will continue, as specified in 
notices given under provisions of Section l La ,  above, shall be at least five (5) days. 

The quantities of water agreed to be made available by BRA to Purchaser 
under this Agreement shall be determined as follows: convert the release rate .from 
System made to allow Purchaser to pump at the rate requested under Section' X a ,  
above, from cfs to acre-feet per day (by multiplying the number of cfs by 1.9835), then 
multiply the converted release rate by the number of days for which Purchaser shall 
have indicated in notices given under Section ll.a, above, that it desires to pump 
continuously at such rates. When the total quantity of water released from System for 
pumping by Purchaser during any Fiscal Year, as computed in accordance with the 
preceding sentence, equals the Annual Contracted Amount, except as allowed by BRA 
pursuant to Section 10 of this Agreement, Purchaser shall have no further right 
hereunder to call on BRA to make water available and BRA shall have no further 
obligation hereunder to make water available to Purchaser during the remainder of such 
Fiscal Year. 

12. 

b) 

c) 

d) 

WITHDRAWAL FACILITIES. The provision of facilities for diversion of 
the water agreed to be made available by BRA to Purchaser hereunder shall be solely 
the responsibility of Purchaser. Where' applicable, BRA may allow the construction of 
such facilities on and across BRA land, subject to the conditions that the design and 
location of such facilities are approved by BRA, that Purchaser prepare and furnish all 
documents necessary for approving the easement, and that Purchaser operate the 
facilities located on BRA land in a manner acceptable to BRA. At the termination of this 
Agreement, all facilities must be removed and the land restored to its original condition 
in a manner acceptable to BRA. Upon execution of this Agreement, the BRA and the 
Purchaser shall agree on a point of diversion which shall be attached hereto in the form 
of a map as Exhibit. Any Subsequent change of the point of diversion must be approved 
in writing by the BRA. 

13. METERING, Purchaser agrees that, a t  its sole cost and expense, i t  shall 
own, install, operate and maintain meters for the accurate measuring of all water 
diverted by Purchaser under this Agreement in order to aid BRA in accurately reporting 
water usage to the TCEQ as required by applicable law or regulation. Such meter or 
meters shall be tested and calibrated for accuracy by and at the expense of Purchaser 
once each Fiscal Year a t  intervals of approximately 12 months, and a report of such test 
and calibration shall be furnished to BRA. BRA shall be given a t  least two prior days 
notice of the time of any test and calibration of Purchaser's meters, or any of them, and 
BRA shall have the right to have a representative present 'at each test to observe the 
test and any adjustments found thereby to be necessary. BRA shall have the right to 
inspect and check the accuracy of Purchaser's meter or meters a t  any time during usual 
business hours after not less than one nor more than five (5) days notice. I n  the event 

6 
L:\Contracts\Water Contracts\LONG-l€RM\City of Rosenberg-CD-07.doc 



any question arises at any time as to the accuracy of any such meter, such meter shall 
be tested promptly upon demand of BRA, the expense of such test to be borne by BRA if 
the meter is found to be correct and by Purchaser if it is found to be incorrect. 
Readings within 5% of accuracy, plus or minus, shall be considered correct. If, as a 
result of any test, any meter is found to be registering inaccurately (Le., in excess of 5% 
of accuracy, plus or minus), the readings of such meter shall be corrected a t  the rate of 
its inaccuracy for any period which is definitely known and agreed upon, but in case the 
period is not definitely known and agreed upon, the period shall be extended back 180 
days from the date of the initial BRA demand for meter testing, and the records of 
readings shall be adjusted accordingly. Following each test of a meter, Purchaser shall 
cause the same to be calibrated to register accurately. 

14. REPORTING. Purchaser agrees that it will keep accurate records of the 
daily readings from the meter or meters installed pursuant to Section 13., Metering, 
above. These records shall be subject'to inspection by BRA a t  reasonable times and 
places. Purchaser shall submit reports to BRA by the lom day of each month showing 
the amount of water diverted under this Agreement each day during the preceding 
month. Failure to comply with this reporting requirement will be deemed a breach of 
this Agreement and may result in termination of Agreement. 

15. SYSTEM EXPANSION. Purchaser and BRA understand that BRA may 
desire to make water available to other customers in a manner or in an amount which 
may necessitate expansion or enlargement of or additions to the System and that in 
connection with any such expansion, enlargement or addition, BRA will incur additional 
costs. The reasonable costs incurred by BRA related to such expansion, enlargement, or 
addition shall be costs of the System. 

16. CONSERVATION OF WATER. It is the intent of the parties to this 
Agreement to provide to the maximum extent practicable for the conservation of water, 
and Purchaser agrees that it is a condition of this Agreement that it shall maintain and 
operate its facilities in a manner that will prevent unnecessary waste of water. BRA, in 
accordance with applicable law or regulation, may from time to time adopt reasonable 
rules and regulations relating to water conservation. Purchaser agrees to abide by the 
"Brazos River Authority Drought Contingency Policy" adopted by the Board on January 
16, 1989, or any subsequent Drought Contingency Policy duly adopted by the Board and 
any Drought Contingency Plans developed under the Drought Contingency Policy. I f  
required by applicable law or regulation or by BRA, Purchaser agrees to implement a 
water conservation and drought management program in accordance with a water 
conservation plan and that the water made available and diverted by Purchaser 
pursuant to this Agreement will be used in accordance with such conservation plan. I f  
required by applicable law or regulation Purchaser agrees that, in the event Purchaser 
furnishes water or water services to a third party that in turn will furnish the water or 
services to the ultimate consumer, the requirements relative to water conservation shall 
be met through contractual agreements between Purchaser and the third party 
providing for the establishment and implementation of a water conservation program in 
compliance with such applicable law or regulation. 

7 
L:\Conbacts\Water Contracts\LONG-TERM\City Of  Rosenberg-CD07.d~ 



17. WATER QUALITY. As a further condition of this Agreement, Purchaser 
also agrees that it will comply with applicable water quality standards of the State in the 
diversion, use, or discharge of water made available hereunder. Should Purchaser be 
determined by any competent legal authority to have degraded the quality of water of 
the State or to have violated any water quality standard established by law or lawfully 
adopted regulation, and subsequently fail to take action with reasonable diligence to 
correct such deficiency as directed by competent legal authority, such failure shall 
constitute breach under this Agreement and may result in termination of this 
Agreement. 

BRA, in accordance with applicable law or regulation, may from time to time 
adopt reasonable rules and regulations relating to water quality protection. I f  required 
by applicable law or regulation, Purchaser agrees to implement appropriate water quality 
protection measures including, without limitation, a non-point source water pollution 
abatement program in accordance with a non-point source water pollution abatement 
plan. 

18. WATER SURPLUS TO PURCHASERS NEEDS. Purchaser may not 
unilaterally cancel this Agreement or reduce the amounts of water agreed to be made 
available to it and for which availability it is obligated to pay under the terms of Sections 
4., 6., and 10. above. Purchaser may not sell or make available to others the water 
agreed to be made available to it under this Agreement, except in the case of municipal 
uses, as potable treated water. However, should Purchaser determine that it has water 
surplus to its anticipated needs from the water to be made available by BRA under this 
Agreement, Purchaser may notify BRA as to the amount of water no longer needed to 
be made available to it. BRA will use reasonable efforts to find a third party who is able 
and willing to pay for such availability for a period to the end of or beyond the term of 
this Agreement. I f  BRA is successful in finding such a third party suitable to i t  to acquire 
Purchaser's interest in its available surplus for a period of time to the end of or beyond 
the term of this Agreement, this Agreement will be amended to reduce the amount of 
water to be made available to Purchaser by the amount of availability paid for by such 
third party, and Purchaser will be relieved of the obligation to make payments for such 
availability of water. 

. 

19. REUSE. All rights to reuse treated wastewater effluent or untreated 
water made available under this Agreement that is either disposed of or discharged or 
otherwise allowed to flow into a watercourse, lake, or other body of state-owned water 
CReuse Water") shall remain with the BRA. Purchaser may not use, sell, or make 
available to others, any form of Reuse Water without the express written consent of the 
BRA. However, Purchaser may directly reuse treated wastewater effluent or untreated 
water provided that such water has not been previously disposed of or discharged or 
otherwise allowed to flow into a watercourse, lake, or other body of state-owned water. 

20. INTERBASIN TRANSFER. Water made available under this Agreement 
shall not be transferred or used outside of the Brazos River Basin unless Purchaser 
obtains the express written consent of BRA and obtains all required governmental 
approvals. 

a 
L:\Conback\Water Conbaas\LONG-TERM\City of Rosenberg-CD07.doc 



21. SHORTAGES AND YEARLY REPORTS. BRA makes no guarantee 
that any lakes or other sources of supply in the System will be maintained at any specific 
level at any particular time. Purchaser bears all transportation losses prior to final 
diversion. It is fully understood by the parties hereto that the level of lakes or other 
sources of supply in the System will vary as a result of weather conditions beyond the 
control of BRA, the use of water from the System by other water customers of BRA, and 
in Federal Reservoirs, as a result of releases made by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 
and that this instrument is merely an agreement to require BRA to make available water 
when and if water is present in the System, and to allow Purchaser to make withdrawals 
of the water subject to the general law on distribution and allocation of water during 
shortages of supply and in conformity with BRA'S water rights from the TCEQ and the 
System Order. 

BRA covenants that it will use its best reasonable efforts in accordance with 
accepted hydrological engineering practices to provide the quantities of water agreed to 
be provided herein. I n  the event of a drought of greater severity than that previously 
experienced, or if for any other reason water in the System becomes in short supply, 
BRA agrees, and Purchaser covenants, that BRA may fairly and equitably apportion and 
ration the available water supply from the System among all its several customers, 
including Purchaser. Purchaser herein acknowledges that it shall hold BRA harmless 
from any and all liability, damages, claims or actions which may exist as a result of 
shortages of water to be made available. 

22. OPERATION OF SYSTEM; BRA'S OTHER CONTRACTS. The right 
of BRA to maintain and operate the System and a t  any and all times in the future to 
impound, release and make available waters therefrom in any lawful manner and to any 
lawful extent BRA may see fit is recognized by Purchaser; and, except as otherwise 
provided herein, there shall be no obligation hereunder upon BRA to pump or not pump, 
store or not to store, or to release and make available or not to release or make 
available any waters at  any time or to maintain any waters at any specified level or to 
operate the System in any manner not in compliance with applicable laws or regulations, 
BRA'S water rights and System Operation Order. BRA may enter into agreements with 
other parties regarding the System, including its operation and maintenance and the 
storage, release and making available water therefrom. BRA makes no representation as 
to the quality of the water in the System. 

23. FORCE MAJEURE. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, 
neither party hereto shall be under any liability or be deemed in default with respect to 
its obligations under this Agreement for any failure to perform or for delay in performing 
such party's obligations hereunder (except for the obligation to pay money) where such 
failure or delay is due to force majeure, while and to the extent that such performance 
is prevented by such cause. The term force majeure means acts of God, fire, storm, 
flood, war, terrorist activity, riots, sabotage, drought, lack of availability of water due to 
sedimentation, low inflows of water to, or lack of water supply in the System, strikes or 
other differences with labor (whether or not within the power of the parties to settle 
same), decrees or orders of the courts or other governmental authority, or other similar 
or dissimilar causes not within the reasonable control of such party and not due to 

9 
L:\Contracts\Water Contracts\LONG-TERM\City of Rosenberg-CD-07.doc 



negligence of such party. Each party shall use due diligence to resume performance of 
any obligation suspended by force majeure a t  the earliest practicable time. 

24. WAIVER. Any waiver a t  any time by any party of its rights with respect 
to default or any right granted under this Agreement shall not be deemed a waiver of 
such rights with respect to any subsequent default or matter. 

25. NOTICES AND CERTIFICATIONS. Notices and certifications provided 
for in this Agreement shall be in writing. The same shall be delivered by mailing certified 
mail, postage paid, return receipt requested, or hand delivered, to the respective parties 
a t  the following addresses: 

BRA: Brazos River Authority 
P.O. Box 7555 
Waco, Texas 76714-7555 
Telephone: (254) 761-3100 
Fax: (254) 761-3207 

2110 Fourth Street 
Rosenberg, Texas 77471 
Telephone: 832-595-3310 
Fax: 832-595-3311 

Purchaser: City of Rosenberg 

Either party may change its address as shown above by written notice to the other 
party. 

26. OTHER REQUIREMENTS. This Agreement is subject to all conditions, 
provisions, and limitations included in BRA’S water rights from the applicable State 
agency and the System Operation Order. Further, this Agreement is subject to all 
applicable Federal, State and local laws, and any applicable ordinances, rules, orders 
and regulations of any local, State or Federal governmental authority having jurisdiction. 
However, nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed as a waiver of any 
right to question or contest any law, ordinance, order, rule, or regulation of any 
governmental authority. 

27. SEVERABILITY. The provisions of this Agreement are severable, and if 
for any reason any one or more of the provisions contained in this Agreement shall be 
held to  be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, the invalidity, illegality, or 
unenforceability shall not affect any other provisions of this Agreement and this 
Agreement shall remain in effect and be construed as if the invalid, illegal, or 
unenforceable provision had never been contained in the Agreement. 

28. TERMINATION. This Agreement may be terminated by either party for 
material breach of the terms of this Agreement or as provided herein. Upon receipt of 
notice of termination by BRA, the Purchaser shall immediately discontinue all diversions 
of use of water made available hereunder. 

10 
L\Contracts\Water Contracts\LONG-TERM\City of Rosenberg-CD-07.doc 



29. INDEMNlTYlHOLD HARMLESS CLAUSE. The Purchaser shall comply 
with the requirements of all applicable laws, rules and regulations and shall exonerate, 
indemnify and hold BRA harmless from any and all liability or damages resulting from 
failure to do so. I n  addition, the Purchaser agrees to keep, save and hold BRA 
harmless from any and all actions, liabilities, damages, judgments, costs and expenses 
including reasonable attorney's fees, in case an action is filed or does in any way accrue 
against BRA, its' officials, officers, and employees in consequence of this Agreement or 
for any negligent act or omission of the Purchaser related to the provision of water 
made available under this Agreement or that may result from the carelessness or lack 
of skill of the Purchaser or the Purchaser's agents, subconsultant, or employees. 

30. This Agreement may be assigned by BRA at its 
discretion. This Agreement may be assigned by Purchaser only with the written consent 
of BRA. Assignment of a portion of the water made available to Purchaser, or any 
assignment which requires change in diversion location, type of use or change in the 
service area must be authorized under Section 18., Water Surplus to Purchaser's Needs, 
or as stated above. 

ASSIGNMENT. 

31. CANCELLATION OF NONPAYMENT. Should Purchaser fail to make 
any payment to BRA when due hereunder, BRA may cancel this Agreement by written 
notice of such nonpayment and statement of BRA's election to cancel this Agreement by 
reason thereof delivered to Purchaser on or before 30 days before the date specified in 
said notice for cancellation, provided that the nonpayment with respect to which notice 
has been given shall not be cured by the date thus specified in such notice. 

32. TERM OF AGREEMENT. The term of this Agreement shall begin on 
the Effective Date, Section 3., and shall end on August 31, 2050. This Agreement shall 
be extended thereafter at the written request of Purchaser under the terms and 
conditions of BRA's standard long-term water availability contract at that time for so 
long as, and to the extent that, BRA continues to have the right and ability to make 
available the amount of water to be made available to Purchaser hereunder. The 
amount of water to be made available under any extension of this Agreement may be 
pro rated to account for loss of System yield over time. 

CITY OF ROSENBERG ~ BRAZOS RIVER AUTHORITY 

11 
of Rosenkq-CO-07.d~ 

















































reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
May 19, 2015 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

C 
Resolution No. R-1967 – Temporary Amendment to System Water 
Availability Agreement 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1967, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
negotiate and execute, for and on behalf of the City, a Temporary Amendment to the System Water 
Availability Agreement by and between the City and Brazos River Authority.   

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[  ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:   N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[X] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 

1. Resolution No. R-1967 
2. *Dominguez Correspondence – 04-29-15 
3. *System Water Availability Agreement – 10-18-07 
4. *Resolution No. R-1946 – 04-07-15 
5. *City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 04-07-15 

 
*please see previous Agenda item for all indicated supporting documentation 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 

 
 
John Maresh 
Assistant City Manager of 
Public Services 

Reviewed by:   

[X] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services  
[   ] City Attorney     
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

On April 07, 2015, City Council approved Resolution No. R-1946, authorizing the City Manager to execute an 
Amended and Restated Agreement related to the assignment of the City’s Brazos River Authority (BRA) surface 
water supply to the Gulf Coast Water Authority (GCWA). Said Agreement would allow the GCWA to use the 
water for both municipal and industrial uses, subject to annual approval by BRA. Section 4 of the System Water 
Availability Agreement entered into by the City and BRA (dated 10-08-07) provides that all water made available 
shall be used solely for municipal purposes. 
 
The Temporary Amendment to the System Water Availability Agreement Between Brazos River Authority and 
City of Rosenberg would allow GCWA to use the water supply for industrial purposes during the current, annual 
term ending December 31, 2015.  
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1967, with the Agreement attached as Exhibit “A”, as 
presented. 
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-1967 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
NEGOTIATE AND EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, A TEMPORARY AMENDMENT TO THE 
SYSTEM WATER AVAILABILITY AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AND BRAZOS RIVER 
AUTHORITY. 

 
*  *  *  *  * 

 
 WHEREAS, the City has entered into a System Water Availability Agreement 
with the Brazos River Authority for municipal purposes; and,  
 
 WHEREAS, the City approved an Amended and Restated Agreement Relating to 
the Temporary Assignment of Rights and Obligations under Water Supply Agreement 
by and between the City and Gulf Coast Water Authority with the passage of Resolution 
No. R-1946 on April 07, 2015; and,  
 
 WHEREAS, the City has received a request from the Gulf Coast Water Authority  
for the assignment of certain Brazos River Authority water allocations for municipal and 
industrial use due to additional needs; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the City currently has a surplus allocation of surface water available 
from the Brazos River Authority for the year 2015; now, therefore, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 
 
 Section 1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to negotiate and execute a 

Temporary Amendment to the System Water Availability Agreement (Amendment) by 

and between the City and Brazos River Authority. 

 Section 2. A copy of said Amendment is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and 

made a part hereof for all purposes. 

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________ 2015. 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, CITY SECRETARY   Vincent M. Morales, Jr., MAYOR 
 
 



reneel
Text Box
Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-1967



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
May 19, 2015 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

D MUD No. 144 Refunding Bond Sale - $6,600,000 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on approval of the issuance of Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District No. 
144 (Summer Lakes and Summer Park)  Refunding Tax Bonds, Series 2015, in an amount not to exceed 
$6,600,000. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ]  Recurring 
[X]  N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:  N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[X] ETJ/City 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 
 

MUD #: 144 (Summer Lakes and 
Summer Park) 

1. Page Correspondence – 04-17-15 
2. Site Map 
 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:  
 
Jeanne H. McDonald/ks 
  

Jeanne H. McDonald 
Attorney 

Reviewed by:   

[X] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services  
[   ] Asst. City Manager for Public Services 
[   ] City Attorney  
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 

Approved for Submittal to 
City Council:   
 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District No. 144 (MUD No. 144) is a development generally identified as Summer 
Lakes (residential) and Summer Park (residential, commercial, and mixed-use). The District is located south of 
Reading Road and east of FM Highway 2977. 
 
MUD No. 144 has the opportunity to “refund” or “refinance” portions of existing bonds by issuing new bonds at a 
lower rate of interest than the existing bonds, thus ensuring significant reduction in interest expense for the 
issuer. Staff has reviewed the request and associated documentation and finds that the refunding to be 
advantageous to MUD No. 144 and its taxpayers.   
 
On May 06, 2003, Starwood Development, LLC, submitted a petition to the City to create a Municipal Utility 
District that included approximately 358.48 acres located primarily within the Corporate Limits of the City, with 
approximately 35.46 acres lying outside the City and outside the Extraterritorial Jurisdiction of the City of 
Rosenberg, to be known as Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District No. 144.  Accordingly, the Petition for 
Consent and associated Ordinance No. 2003-21 were approved by City Council at that time. Subsequently, City 
Council approved Ordinance No. 2005-32 on December 13, 2005, expanding the District’s territory by 173.34 
acres; approved Ordinance No. 2006-10, expanding the District’s territory by 17.788 acres; approved Ordinance 
No. 2006-18 on July 18, 2006, expanding the District’s territory by an additional 1.5369 acres; and, approved 
Ordinance No. 2010-14 on June 01, 2010, again expanding the District’s territory by an additional 6.00 acres. 
 
Following is a list of  Unlimited Tax Bond Sales and Bond Anticipation Notes (BAN) that have been previously 
approved by City Council: 

 Ordinance No. 2006-39 - City Council approved the District’s first bond sale in the amount of $2,815,000 
on December 05, 2006.  

 Ordinance No. 2007-48 - City Council approved the District’s BAN in the amount of $1,650,000 on 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

October 16, 2007. The BAN was subsequently repaid out of the bond sale authorized under Ordinance 
No. 2008-21.  

 Ordinance No. 2008-21 - City Council approved the District’s second bond sale in the amount of 
$3,030,000 on October 07, 2008. 

 Ordinance No. 2012-38 - City Council approved the District’s BAN in the amount of $1,301,500 on 
November 06, 2012. The BAN approved by City Council under Ordinance No. 2012-38 was 
subsequently repaid out of the Series 2013 bond sale under Ordinance No. 2013-24. 

 Ordinance No. 2013-24 – City Council approved the District’s third bond sale in the amount of 
$2,695,000 on May 07, 2013.   

 Ordinance No, 2014-27 – City Council approved the District’s BAN in the amount of $2,000,000 on June 
17, 2014. The BAN approved by City Council under Ordinance No. 2014-27 was subsequently repaid 
out of the Series 2015 bond sale under Ordinance No. 2015-06. 

 Ordinance No. 2015-06 – City Council approved the District’s 4th bond sale in the amount of $3,400,000 
on February 17, 2015. 

 
Staff is recommends approval of the issuance of Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District No.144 Refunding 
Tax Bonds, Series 2015, in an amount not to exceed $6,600,000. 
 







!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!
!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!
!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

§̈¦£¤96 590

§̈¦£¤96 594

@A2977

BRYAN

VI
ST

A

ROUND
LAKE

CIT
RUSWOOD TRAIL

DRAGONFLY

SUMM ERSH ORE

SU MMERNIGHT

PARK

PL

ACE LA
KE

BRID
GE

TURNB ULL

FORT

HILL

WILLOW

PLAINS

EUCLID

SILENT DEEP

BLUE

LAKE

BUT
TE

R
FL

Y
HONEYSUCKLEVINE

K
EP

LE
R

S

M
IN

O
N

IT
E CLOVER

LE

AF

METAPHOR

HENRICO

SU
M

M
ER

CR
ESCEN

T

R
IV

ER
D

EL
TA

SU
M

M
ER

PA
R

K

VA
LL

EY
RID

GE

BRAZOS

TOWN

AQUA
VIS

TA

RI
CH

FI
SH

RU
N

SUMMERBREEZE

D
EB

BI
E

MEADOW

STON
ER

O
LL

ER

TO
W

N

CENTER

COMMERCIAL

BIOTICSRESEARCH

H
EL

EN

AR
BO

R

G
RE

EN

LAKESHO R EPOINT

SH
AN

E

RA
VE

N

LA
RK

SH
EN

A
N

D
O

A
H

FA
LL

S

O
AK

RI
VE

R

JASMINE

PA
D

D
LE

FI
SH

SU
M

M
E

R
CR

ES
T

DEEPGREEN

G
O

LD
EN

G
R

A
IN

ST
U

B
B

S
B

EN
D

SI
LV

ER
R

IP
P

LE

HIG HRI D GE

BUTLERLAKES
SUMMERLAKE PASS

RO
CK

Y
K

N
O

LL

CRESCENTLAKE

READING

MYSTI CRIVER

SUMMERDALE

RUNNIN GBROOK

ROHAN

YAUPON RIDGE

BE
N

TO
N

CA
R

D
IN

A
L

M
YS

T
ER

IU M

S UN
SH

IN
E

M
ED

LE
Y

P
IC

K

ETT

H
ILL

LAKECOMMONS

READING

MESSINA

SP
AC

EK

W
IND

ING
LA

K ES

READING

AUGUST GREEN

VILLAGE CLUB

SY
CA

M
O

RE

TO
RI

SOUTHWEST

FWY

SOVEREIGN

CHEVAL L

G OLDEN

HO LLOWS

G
LEN

N

CE
M

ET
ER

Y

PERS I M

M
O

N

GROVE

C L EISTES

§̈¦£¤96 59N

§̈¦£¤96 59N

1 Inch = 1,000 Feet

1:12,000

Summer Lakes, Summer Park, 
and Waterford Park

Municipal Utility District (MUD) 144
April 2015

City of Rosenberg, Texas

Scale:

or

0 500 1,000 1,500 2,000

Feet

Interstate

US Highway

State Highway

Public Road

Private Road

Railroad

MUD 144

Other Active MUDs

Rosenberg City Limits

Rosenberg ETJ

Other Jurisdictions

This product is for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable 
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of geographic features.

Created by: City of Rosenberg GIS - Paul M. Jones
Date Created: April 28, 2015
Original Size: 11" x 17"
K:\GIS\MAPS\GIS\2015\MUD_Maps_for_Internet_Indiv.mxd

Å

Û

N

S

EW



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 

May 19, 2015 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

E 
Resolution No. R-1957 – Drainage Channel Conveyance by Special 
Warranty Deed 

ITEM/MOTION 
 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1957, a Resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute and 
accept, for and on behalf of the City, a Special Warranty Deed being 12.12 acres of land, between the City 
of Rosenberg and Rosenberg Business Park, Ltd.  

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:   

N/A 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[X] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 

 
1. Resolution No. R-1957  
2. Rosenberg Business Park Development Agreement – 03-01-13 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   
 

 
 
Travis Tanner, AICP 
Executive Director of 
Community Development 

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services  
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services 
[   ] City Attorney     
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
As part of the Rosenberg Business Park Development Agreement, Rosenberg Business Park, LTD., is 
required to convey a 12.12-acre drainage channel to the City of Rosenberg and to forego any rights to 
reimbursement.  Staff has received a Special Warranty Deed for the 12.12-acre drainage channel.  
Resolution No. R-1957 has been included to allow City Council to accept the conveyance of said drainage 
channel. 
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1957 as presented. 
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-1957 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE, 
FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, A 
SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED BEING 12.12 ACRES OF LAND, BY AND 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AND ROSENBERG 
BUSINESS PARK, LTD. 

*  *  *  *  * 

 WHEREAS, the City Council authorizes a Special Warranty Deed, being 12.12 
acres of land, between the City of Rosenberg and Rosenberg Business Park, LTD., 
particularly described as that certain Drainage Channel Conveyance attached hereto as 
Exhibit “A”; and, 

 WHEREAS, the Rosenberg Business Park Development Agreement, executed 
on March 01, 2013, requires conveyance of said drainage channel to the City of 
Rosenberg; and,   

 WHEREAS, staff was directed to prepare and facilitate any and all 
documentation necessary to acquire that certain real property; and, 

 WHEREAS, the City Council hereby acknowledges and accepts conveyance of 
said drainage channel; now, therefore, 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 

 Section 1. That the City Council of the City of Rosenberg acknowledges the 

acquisition of a drainage channel by Special Warranty Deed for certain real property 

more particularly described as a 12.12 acres of land, in the S.B. Pentecost Survey, A-

378 and the S.B. Pentecost Survey, A-362, Fort Bend County, Texas, and being a 

portion of the 158.5 acre tract described in the Deed from 2218 Rosenberg, L.P., to 

Windmeadows Investors, Ltd., recorded under File No. 2005-095386, in the Official 

Public Records of Fort Bend County, Texas, more particularly described in Exhibit “A” 

attached hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes. 

Section 2. That the City Council hereby acknowledges and authorizes the 

Mayor to execute and accept, for and on behalf of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, the 



2 
 

foregoing Special Warranty Deed regarding conveyance of the 12.12 acre drainage 

channel.  

PASSED, APPROVED AND RESOLVED this _____ day of _________________ 2015. 

 

ATTEST:       APPROVED: 

 

              
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary    Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 



THE STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF FORT BEND 

SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED 
(DRAINAGE CHANNEL) 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 

NOTICE OF CONFIDENTIALITY RIGHTS: IF YOU ARE A NATURAL 
PERSON, YOU MAY REMOVE OR STRIKE ANY OF THE FOLLOWING 
INFORMATION FROM THIS INSTRUMENT BEFORE IT IS FILED FOR 
RECORD IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS: YOUR SOCIAL SECURITY 
NUMBER OR YOUR DRIVER'S LICENSE NUMBER. 

THAT ROSENBERG BUSINESS PARK, LTD., a Texas limited partnership, (hereinafter 
designated "Grantor") for and in consideration of the sum of Ten Dollars ($10.00) and other 
good and valuable consideration cash in hand paid by THE CITY OF ROSENBERG TEXAS, a 
municipal corporation, whose address is P.O. Box 32, 2110 4th Street, Rosenberg, Texas 77471 
(hereinafter designated "Grantee"), the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, has 
GRANTED, SOLD and CONVEYED and by these presents does hereby GRANT, SELL and 
CONVEY, all of the real property in Fort Bend County, Texas, described in Exhibit "A" 
attached hereto. 

The Deed and conveyance is expressly made subject to all liens, encumbrances, conditions, 
easements and other exceptions appearing of record in the office of the County Clerk of Fort Bend 
County, Texas, and applicable to such property. 

TO HA VE AND TO HOLD the above-described premises, together with all and singular, the 
rights and appurtenances thereto in anywise belonging, unto the Grantee, its successors and assigns, 
forever; and Grantor does hereby bind itself and its successors, to Warrant and Forever Defend all and 
singular the premises unto the said Grantee, its successors and assigns, against every person 
whomsoever lawfully claiming or to claim the same or any part thereof, by, through or under Grantor, 
but not otherwise. 

EXECUTED as oftheL day of _--,~J'\hfLO-J-('----,:_L~_, 2015 . .rq:., 

reneel
Text Box
Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-1957



STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF FORT BEND 

GRANTOR: 

ROSENBERG BUSINESS PARK, LTD., a 
Texas limited partnership 

By: ROSENBERG BUSINESS PARK GP, LLC, a 
ited liability co 

. . . This i~stru~ent wa~" acknowledged before me, on. the ~ .\-'h- day Of~, 2~15: ~y 
\N\\\\(A.V\'\ ~Sm l l'h~ ~s 'Yre.Si cie.tJ; of Rosenberg Busmess Park GP, LLC, a Texas hmIted habIlIty 
company, in its capacity as General Partner of ROSENBERG BUSINESS PARK, LTD. , a Texas 
limited partnership, on behalf of said limited partnership. 

laura Flores 
[SEAL] Notary P.blk. 

Sill Ie of Tn., 
Expires: 01·23-2019 Notary Public, State of Texas 

l nlVeL Y'l6ye S-
My Commission Expires: 

1 12-3 ( 1D 10 Printed Name of Notary Public 

2 



Page 1 of 3 
12.12 ACRES 
JOB NO. 1880-001-00-531 

Exhibit "A" 

METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION OF 12.12 ACRES OF LAND 
IN THE S.B. PENTECOST SURVEY, A-378 AND THE S.B. PENTECOST SURVEY, A-362 

FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS 

BEING 12.12 acres of land, in the S.B. Pentecost Survey, A-378 and the S.B. Pentecost Survey, A-
362, Fort Bend County, Texas, and being a portion of the 158.5 acre tract described in the deed 
from 2218 Rosenberg, L.P. to Windmeadows Investors, Ltd., recorded under File No. 2005-
095386, in the Official Public Records of Fort Bend County, Texas, the 7.2649 acre tract and the 
7.2717 acre tract described as Tract II, the 28.06 acre tract described as Tract III, the 35.95 acre 
tract described as Tract I, in the deed from Rio Mortgage Company to Windmeadows Investors, 
ltd., recorded under File No. 2009-000812, in the Official Public Records of Real Property of Fort 
Bend County, Texas, and the 11.37 acre tract described in the deed from WM Commercial, L.P. to 
Windmeadows Investors, Ltd., recorded under File No. 2008-108814, in the Official Public Records 
of Real Property of Fort Bend County, Texas, and more particularly described by metes and 
bounds as follows with bearings based on the east right-of-way line of F.M. 2218 bearing North 
44° 43' 46" East, as monumented: 

COMMENCING at a 5/8 inch iron rod found for the north corner of said 11.37 acre tract, in the 
southeast right-of-way line of F.M . 2218 [100' R.O.W.); 

THENCE South 44° 43' 46" West - 292.95 feet, along sa id southeast right-of-way line, to a 5/8 
inch iron rod with cap stamped "IDS" set for the northwest corner and POINT OF BEGINNING of 
the herein described tract; 

THENCE North 89° 27' 18" East - 410.90 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with cap stamped "IDS" set for 
an angle corner of the herein described tract, in the northeast line of said 11.37 acre tract; 

THENCE South 45° 04 ' 10" East - 50.59 feet, with the northeast line of said 11.37 acre tract, and 
the northeast line of said 28.06 acre tract, to an angle corner of the herein described tract, in the 
northeast line of said 28.06 acre tract, common to the west corner of said 7.2649 acre tract, from 
which a found 1 inch iron pipe, bears North 38° 47' 40" East - 0.40 feet; 

THENCE North 44° 33' 55" East - 40.00 feet, with the southeast line of the 3.879 acre tract 
described in the deed from Peggy Geiselman Rice, et al. to PEGMO, L.L.c., recorded under File No. 
2003-107704, in the Official Public Records of Real Property of Fort Bend County, Texas, to a 5/8 
inch iron rod with cap stamped "IDS" set for a northeast corner of the herein described tract; 

THENCE South 45° 04' 10" East - 733.67 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with cap stamped "IDS" set for 
a northeast corner of the herein described tract, in the southeast line of said 7.2717 acre tract; 



Page 2 of 3 
12.12 ACRES 
JOB NO. 1880-001-00-531 

THENCE South 25° 47' 19" West - 42.34 feet, with the southeast line of said 7.2717 acre tract, to 
the south corner of said 7.2717 acre tract, common to an angle corner of the herein described 
tract, in the northeast line of said 28.06 acre tract, from which a found 1 inch iron pipe, bears 
North 33° 04 ' 20" East - 0.30 feet; 

THENCE South 45 ° 04' 10" East - 2745,83 feet, with the northeast line of said 28,06 acre tract, the 
northeast line of said 35.95 acre tract, and the northeast line of said 158.5 acre tract, to a 5/8 inch 
iron rod with cap stamped "IDS" set for the east corner of the herein described tract; 

THENCE South 46° 08' 18" West -120,03 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with cap stamped "IDS" set 
for the south corner of the herein described tract; 

THENCE North 45° 04' 10" West - 3532.97 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with cap stamp.ed "IDS" set 
for an angle corner of the herein described tract; 

THENCE South 89° 27' 18" West - 259.30 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with cap stamped "IDS" set 
for the Point of Curvature of a curve to the left; 

THENCE in a westerly direction, a long said curve to the left, having a central angle of 44° 43' 32", 
a chord bearing and distance of South 67° 05' 32" West - 38.05 feet, a radius of 50.00 feet, and an 
arc distance of 39.03 feet, to a 5/8 inch iron rod with cap stamped "lOS" set for the end of curve; 

THENCE South 44° 43' 46" West - 389.73 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with cap stamped "IDS" set 
for an angle corner of the herein described tract; 

THENCE North 45° 16' 14" West -100.00 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with cap stamped "IDS" set 
for the west corner of the herein described tract, in the in the southeast right-of-way line of said 
F.M . 2218; 

THENCE North 44° 43' 46" East - 437.23 feet, along the southeast line of said F.M. 2218, to the 
POINT OF BEGINNING of the herein described tract and containing 12.12 acres of land, 



Page 3 of 3 

12.12 ACRES 
JOB NO, 1880·001-00·531 

Prepared by: \ 

IDS Engineering Group I 
Job No. 1880.001.00.S3

L 
June 21,2013 
'\ 

~\ 

'~ \/ I-'-i . j., erv'V'-:,' . Po.. .·6 . \/"t·~-vf4f''''.-.'' ' '' . . " "--- • 
~-- . "1--, ~~ ( ~.::.' -'----:;.L---.----- --- -

Douglas W. luI' ~r ~, - ,- "\ -" .. . ,f , 

Registered Profe sional Uand Surveyor 
Texas Registratio Numb1er 3988 

This description has bee ~ prepared as a result of a survey completed on June 19, 2013 and is 
submitted In connection 1ith a survey drawing prepared by IDS Engineering Group dated June 19, 

2013, Job No. l880'001·t·S31. 



II 













jasmineb
Rectangle

















































CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
May 19, 2015 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

2 
Ordinance 2015-14 - Canvassing the Returns and Declaring the Results of 
the May 9, 2015 Municipal Election 

 

ITEM/MOTION 
 

Consideration of and action on Ordinance No. 2015-14, an Ordinance canvassing the returns and 
declaring the results of the General Municipal Election held on May 9, 2015, within the City for the purpose 
of electing a Mayor and six (6) Council Members; and containing other provisions relating to the subject. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ]  Recurring 
[X]  N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds: N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[X] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 
 

MUD #: N/A 

 
1. Ordinance No. 2015-14 
2. Office of Election Administration, Fort Bend County, Texas, Canvass Report – to be distributed at 

meeting 
 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:  
 
 
 
 
Linda Cernosek, TRMC 
City Secretary 

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services 
[X] City Attorney DNRBHZ/lc   
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council:   
 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

As Presiding Officer of the May 9, 2015 Municipal Election, the Mayor is required to hold a canvass of the 
election ballots, and he and the City Council must declare the election results.  The proposed Ordinance would 
confirm that the election for City officers was held, the proper procedures were followed as mandated by law, the 
results have been filed with the City Council, the number of votes each candidate received, and declaration of 
the winning candidates.   
 
A copy of the proposed Ordinance No. 2015-14 is included as a supporting document for City Council’s 
approval.  The canvass report from the Office of Elections Administration, Fort Bend County, Texas, was not yet 
available at print time for this Agenda packet.  The canvass report will be distributed at the City Council meeting. 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2015-14 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, CANVASSING THE RETURNS AND 
DECLARING THE RESULTS OF THE GENERAL MUNICIPAL 
ELECTION HELD ON MAY 9, 2015, WITHIN THE CITY FOR THE 
PURPOSE OF ELECTING A MAYOR AND SIX (6) COUNCIL 
MEMBERS; AND CONTAINING OTHER PROVISIONS RELATING TO 
THE SUBJECT. 

 
WHEREAS, a General Municipal Election was duly held in the City of Rosenberg on May 9, 2015, 

in accordance with the requirements of law and the Texas Election Code; and, 

WHEREAS, said Election was duly and legally held in conformity with the election laws of the 
State of Texas, and the results of said Election have been verified and returned by the proper judges and 
clerk; and,  

 
WHEREAS, it appears that a total of 1,947 votes were cast in said Election. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG:  
 

 Section 1. The facts and matters set forth in the preamble of this Ordinance are hereby 
found to be true and correct. 
 
 Section 2. The official canvass of the returns of the General Election held on May 9, 2015, 
reflects that the following named persons received the number of votes set opposite their names in the 
respective positions to be filled: 
 

Mayor (2 year term) 
  Candidate      Votes Received 
  Cynthia McConathy     1,079 
  Dwayne Grigar      822 
 

Council, At Large, Position One (2 year term) 
  Candidate      Votes Received 
  George A. Zepeda, Sr.     554 
  William T. Benton     1,317 
 

Council, At Large, Position Two (2 year term) 
  Candidate      Votes Received 
  Amanda J. Barta     1,066 
  Alicia Casias      815 
 

Council, District 1 (1 year term) 
  Candidate      Votes Received 
  Juan Salazar      125 
  Jimmie J. Pena      152 
 

Council, District 2 (1 year term) 
  Candidate      Votes Received 
  Joe G. Segura      188 
  Susan Kroll Euton     244 



Page 2 of 2 

 
 

Council, District 3 (1 year term) 
  Candidate      Votes Received 
  Sergio J. Villagomez (withdrew)    86 
  Lisa M. Wallingford     285 (RUNOFF) 
  Joe Vera      213 (RUNOFF) 
 

Council, District 4 (1 year term)  
  Candidate      Votes Received 
  Lynn Moses      351 
  Brent Redding      246 
 
 Section 3. The official canvass of the returns of the General Municipal Election held on May 
9, 2015, reflects that the following persons were duly elected to the respective positions: 
 
  Mayor:     Cynthia McConathy (2 year term) 
 
  Council, At Large, Position One: William T. Benton (2 year term) 
 
  Council, At Large, Position Two: Amanda J. Barta (2 year term) 
 
  Council, District 1:   Jimmie J. Pena (1 year term) 
 
  Council, District 2:   Susan Kroll Euton (1 year term) 
 
  Council, District 4:   Lynn Moses (1 year term) 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED by a vote of __________”ayes” in favor and of __________ “noes” 
against on this first and final reading in full compliance with Section 3.10 of the City Charter of the City of 
Rosenberg, Texas, on this the 19th day of May 2015. 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary    Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 
       
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
 
       
Scott M. Tschirhart, City Attorney 
Denton Navarro Rocha Bernal Hyde & Zech, P.C. 
 



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
May 19, 2015 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

3 
Ordinance 2015-15 - Canvassing the Returns and Declaring the Results of 
the May 9, 2015 Special Election 

 

ITEM/MOTION 
 

Consideration of and action on Ordinance No. 2015-15, an Ordinance canvassing the returns and 
declaring the results of a Special Election held on May 9, 2015, in the City for the purpose of submitting to 
the duly qualified resident electors of the City consideration of one (1) Charter proposition, and declaring 
that said Ordinance shall be effective immediately upon its adoption. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ]  Recurring 
[X]  N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds: N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[X] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 
 

MUD #: N/A 

 
1. Ordinance No. 2015-15 
2. Office of Election Administration, Fort Bend County, Texas Canvass Report – to be distributed at 

meeting 
 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:  
 

 

Linda Cernosek, TRMC 
City Secretary 

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services  
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services 
[X] City Attorney DNRBHZ/lc   
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council:   

 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

As Presiding Officer of the May 9, 2015 Special Election, the Mayor is required to hold a canvass of the election 
ballots, and he and the City Council must declare the election results.  The proposed Ordinance would confirm 
that the election for proposed Charter proposition was held, the proper procedures were followed as mandated 
by law, the results have been filed with the City Council, the number of votes each proposition received, and 
declaration of the winning proposition. 
  
A copy of the proposed Ordinance No. 2015-15 is included as a supporting document for City Council’s 
approval.  The canvass report from the Office of Elections Administration, Fort Bend County, Texas, was not yet 
available at print time for the Agenda packet.  The canvass report will be distributed at the meeting. 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2015-15 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, CANVASSING THE RETURNS AND 
DECLARING THE RESULTS OF A SPECIAL ELECTION HELD ON 
MAY 9, 2015, IN THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, FOR THE 
PURPOSE OF SUBMITTING TO THE DULY QUALIFIED RESIDENT 
ELECTORS OF THE CITY CONSIDERATION OF ONE (1) CHARTER 
PROPOSITION, AND DECLARING THAT SAID ORDINANCE SHALL 
BE EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY UPON ITS ADOPTION. 

 
WHEREAS, heretofore previously, Ordinance No. 2015-07, an Ordinance 

passed and approved by the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Texas (the “City”), 
ordered the Special Election on the 17th day of February 2015; and, 
 

WHEREAS, a Special Election was duly held in the City of Rosenberg on 
Saturday, the 9th day of May 2015, in accordance with the requirements of law and the 
Texas Election Code; and, 
 

WHEREAS, one (1) Charter amendment (proposition) was considered by the 
duly qualified electors of the City of Rosenberg in said Special Election. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS:  

 
Section 1. That the City Council of the City of Rosenberg finds and determines 

that a Special Election was duly held in the City of Rosenberg in accordance with the 

provisions of the Texas Election Code on Saturday, the 9th day of May 2015, at which 

election a proposition was considered, to-wit, Proposition No. 1; that notice thereof was 

given in accordance with law; the due returns of said election have been made by the 

proper officers and canvassed by the City Council of the City of Rosenberg; that said 

election in all things complies with the Texas Election Code; and that at said election, 

the following votes were cast: 

 
PROPOSITION NO. 1 

The amendment of the City Charter providing for a term limit of three consecutive terms 
of office. 
 

VOTES CAST FOR (YES) SAID PROPOSITION: 1509 
 
VOTES CAST AGAINST (NO) SAID PROPOSITION:    364 
 



Page 2 of 2 

Section 2. That Proposition No. 1 having received a majority of votes cast for 

said proposition is hereby declared and ordered to be officially and finally passed and 

approved. 

 
 PASSED AND APPROVED by a vote of __________”ayes” in favor and of 

__________ “noes” against on this first and final reading in full compliance with Section 

3.10 of the City Charter of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, on this the 19th day of May 2015. 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
___________________________   _____________________________ 
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary   Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Scott M. Tschirhart, City Attorney 
Denton Navarro Rocha Bernal Hyde & Zech, P.C. 
 



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
May 19, 2015 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

4 Ordinance No. 2015-16 – Calling the Runoff Election for June 13, 2015 

 

ITEM/MOTION 
 

Consideration of and action on Ordinance No. 2015-16, an Ordinance calling a Runoff Election on 
Saturday, June 13, 2015, for the purpose of electing Council Member District 3; providing for early voting 
and for Notice of the Election; and providing for other matters relating to the Election. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X]  N/A 

Source of Funds: 

N/A 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[X] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:   N/A 

 
1. Ordinance No. 2015-16 
 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   
 
 
 
 
Linda Cernosek, TRMC 
City Secretary 

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services  
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services   
[X] City Attorney DNRBHZ/lc   
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council:   
 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The canvass of the May 19, 2015, General Election reflected that for Council District 3, no single candidate 
received more than fifty percent (50%) of the votes to be elected by a majority vote; therefore, a Runoff Election 
is required for the candidates who received the highest and second highest number of votes.  The City Council 
must order the Runoff Election no later than the fifth (5th) day after the date the final canvass of the main election 
is completed.  This election must be held not earlier than the twentieth (20th) or later than the forty-fifth (45th) day 
after the date the final canvass of the main election is completed, per Texas Election Code, Section 2.025. 
 
The Mayor has certified to the City Secretary that for Council District 3, candidates Lisa M. Wallingford and Joe 
Vera should be placed on the ballot for the Runoff Election.  The proposed Ordinance No. 2015-16 calls the 
Runoff Election for June 13, 2015, to elect one (1) Council Member to the Council District 3 position; to provide 
for early voting, and for Notice of the Election; and to provide for other matters relating to the election. 
 



 

 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-16 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, CALLING A RUNOFF ELECTION ON 
SATURDAY, JUNE 13, 2015, FOR THE PURPOSE OF ELECTING 
COUNCIL MEMBER DISTRICT 3; PROVIDING FOR EARLY VOTING 
AND FOR NOTICE OF THE ELECTION; AND PROVIDING FOR OTHER 
MATTERS RELATING TO THE ELECTION. 
 

 
 WHEREAS, under State law, if a candidate does not receive enough votes to be elected in an 

election requiring a majority vote, a runoff election is required for the candidates who receive the highest 

and second highest number of votes (Texas Election Code §§ 2.021; 2.023); and, 

 

 WHEREAS, not later than the fifth day after the date the final canvass of the main election is 

completed, the city council must order the runoff election (Texas Election Code § 2.024); and, 

  

 WHEREAS, the runoff election must be held not earlier than the 20th or later than the 45th day 

after the date the final canvass of the main election is completed (Texas Election Code § 2.025); and,  

 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor has certified to the City Secretary that the Council District 3 candidates 

Lisa M. Wallingford and Joe Vera be placed on the ballot for the runoff election (Texas Election Code § 

2.027). 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 

 

 Section 1. In accordance with the Constitution and general laws of the State of Texas, a 

Municipal Runoff Election is hereby called and ordered for Saturday, June 13, 2015, at which election all 

qualified voters of the City may vote for the purpose of electing the following official of the City: 

Council Member, District 3 

 

 Section 2. The candidates for such runoff election shall be Lisa M. Wallingford and Joe 

Vera, same being the candidates in the general election receiving the highest and the second highest 

number of votes for Council Member, District 3. 

 

Section 3. The polling place for the voting precincts in the City of Rosenberg for the Election 

Day voting is the Rosenberg City Hall, Council Chamber, 2110 4th Street, Rosenberg, Texas. 

 

Section 4. The Elections Administrator of Fort Bend County, Texas, shall act as Contracting 

Officer (the “Contracting Officer”) and shall appoint election judges, alternate judges and clerks as 



 
Page 2 of 3 

described in the Contract for Election Services between Fort Bend County and the City of Rosenberg, 

Texas. 

 

Section 5. The Elections Administrator of Fort Bend County, Texas, shall receive 

applications by mail for a ballot to be voted by mail, until the close of business on June 04, 2015 at 5:00 

p.m.  Requests for applications should be mailed to:  Mr. John Oldham, Fort Bend County Elections 

Administrator, Fort Bend County Elections Division, 4520 Reading Road, Suite A, Rosenberg, Texas  

77471. 

 

Section 6. The dates and times for early voting by personal appearance shall be as follows 

at the location below: 

June 13, 2015 Run Off Election 
Horario de Votación Temprana 

13 de Junio del 2015, Elección de Desempate 
City of Rosenberg 

 

Schedule for: 
Horario para: Fort Bend County Rosenberg Annex – 4520 Reading Road, Rosenberg, Texas. 
 

Day(Dia) Date(Fecha) Hours(Horas) 
Monday – Friday 
(Lunes-Viernes) 

June 1 – June 5, 2015 
(Junio 1 – Junio 5, 2015) 

8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. 
(8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.) 
 

Saturday – Sunday 
(Sábado – Domingo) 

June 6 – June 7, 2015 
(Junio  6– Junio 7, 2015) 

CLOSED 
(CERRADO) 
 

Monday – Tuesday 
(Lunes-Martes) 

June 8 – June 9, 2015 
(Junio 8 – Junio 9, 2015) 

7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. 
(7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m.) 

 
Section 7. Such election shall be held in accordance with the Texas Election Code and only 

resident, qualified voters of the City shall be eligible to vote. 

 

Section 8. Notice of the election shall be given as provided by law. 

 

Section 9. Voting at the election, including early voting, shall be by use of the County 

electronic voting system that has been duly approved by the Secretary of State. 

 

 Section 10. That pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 87 of the Texas Election Code, an 

Early Voting Ballot Board is created, which Board shall consist of a presiding judge and clerks as 

appointed by the Contracting Officer. The Early Voting Ballot Board shall perform such functions and shall 

have such duties as are provided for by the Texas Election Code.  In addition, the counting station for all 

ballots cast in such election shall be operated by the Contracting Officer, and such clerks as shall be 

necessary to count the ballots and to prepare the election returns in accordance with the provisions of 

Chapter 65 of the Texas Election Code. 

 



 
Page 3 of 3 

 PASSED AND APPROVED by a vote of _____ “ayes” in favor and _____ “no’s” against on this 

first and final reading in full compliance with the provisions of Section 3.10 of the Charter of the City of 

Rosenberg on the 19th day of May 2015. 

 

ATTEST:      APPROVED: 

 

 

              

Linda Cernosek, City Secretary    Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

       

Scott M. Tschirhart, City Attorney 
DENTON, NAVARRO ROCHA, BERNAL, HYDE & ZECH, P. C. 



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
May 19, 2015  
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

5 
Resolution No. R-1962 – Engineering Services Agreement for Bryan Road 
Project 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1962, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
negotiate and execute, for and on behalf of the City, an Engineering Services Agreement for the Bryan 
Road Reconstruction Project, by and between the City and Landtech Consultants, Inc., in an amount not 
to exceed $978,565. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[X] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[   ] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[X] Yes  [   ] No  [   ] N/A 

Source of Funds:    

419-0000-550-7032 

420-0000-550-7034 

CP1103 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[X] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 

 
1. Resolution No. R-1962 
2. Project Location Map 
3. Resolution No. R-1801 – 06-17-14 
4. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 06-17-14 
5. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 10-24-12 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 

 
 
John Maresh 
Assistant City Manager of 
Public Services 

Reviewed by:   

[X] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services  
[X] City Attorney DNRBHZ/rl    
[X] City Engineer  
[X] Project Director  
  
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Both the Bryan Road Reconstruction Project and Spacek Road Phase II Reconstruction Project (Project) are 
included in the FY2015 Capital Improvement Project (CIP) plan approved by City Council on June 17, 2014. The 
Project will consist of widening the existing two-lane undivided roadways to a four-lane curb and gutter 
boulevard on Bryan Road from FM 2218 to approximately 760 feet east of Spacek Road and Spacek Road from 
Bryan Road to the northern boundary of the Oaks of Rosenberg Subdivision. The Project also includes the 
realignment of Bryan Road at FM 2218, conversion of the Bryan Road/Spacek Road intersection from a T-
intersection into a 4-way intersection for the future extension of Spacek Road, construction of new/replacement 
bridges over Dry Creek, installation of an underground storm drainage system, water reuse line, sidewalk on one 
side of the boulevard and replacement of water and sanitary sewer utility lines. The engineering firm will be 
responsible for all aspects of the Project design including tasks such as the preparation of a topographic survey 
and property surveys for the additional right-of-way that will have to be acquired, securing TxDOT permits for the 
realignment at FM 2218 and completion of a traffic signal warrant study if required by TxDOT.   
 
The Project does have adequate funding available for the engineering design phase. The construction phase will 
be funded from multiple sources, all of which are not secured at this time. The 2007 Fort Bend County Mobility 



Bonds (Bonds) allocated $1.1 million and the 2013 Bonds allocated $4.7 million for Bryan Road. The 2007 
Bonds also allocated $1.5 million for Spacek Road. The County bond funds are typically capped at 50% of the 
construction costs, so it is possible the City may not be able to fully utilize all of those funds on the Bryan Road 
portion of the Project. The City’s current CIP has allocated approximately $2.24 million for Bryan Road and 
$656,000 for Spacek Road. A portion of these funds will be used for the engineering services. Therefore, the 
City will have to secure additional funds in FY2016 to fully fund the construction phase.    
 
On October 12, 2012, City Council selected Landtech Consultants, Inc., to provide engineering services for the 
Bryan Road Reconstruction Project. Staff has negotiated the Engineering Services Agreement for the Bryan 
Road and Spacek Road, Phase II Reconstruction Project for your consideration.  Said Agreement is attached to 
Resolution No. R-1962 as Exhibit “A”. 
 
Staff is recommending approval of Resolution No. R-1962.  The Resolution will authorize the City Manager to 
negotiate and execute an Engineering Services Agreement for the Bryan Road Reconstruction Project, by and 
between the City and Landtech Consultants, Inc., in an amount not to exceed $978,565. 
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-1962 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
NEGOTIATE AND EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AN ENGINEERING SERVICES AGREEMENT 
FOR THE BRYAN ROAD RECONSTRUCTION PROJECT, BY AND 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AND LANDTECH 
CONSULTANTS, INC., IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $978,565. 
 

*  *  *  *  * 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 
 
 Section 1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to negotiate and execute an 

Engineering Services Agreement (Agreement) for the Bryan Road Reconstruction 

Project, by and between the City of Rosenberg, Texas, and Landtech Consultants, Inc., 

in an amount not to exceed $978,565.  A copy of such Agreement is attached hereto as 

Exhibit “A” and made a part hereof for all purposes.  

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________ 2015. 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary    Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 
 
 

 

 



Page 1 of 10 

 

PO# ____  
 

AGREEMENT FOR 
ENGINEERING DESIGN SERVICES 

Bryan Road Reconstruction 
 

STATE OF TEXAS §  

COUNTY OF FORT BEND §  

THIS AGREEMENT, entered into and executed by and between the CITY OF ROSENBERG, a home rule 
municipality under the laws of the State of Texas, hereinafter called "CITY", and Landtech Consultants, Inc. 
hereinafter called "ENGINEER".  
 
WHEREAS, the ENGINEER represents that it is fully capable of making and qualified to provide assistance 
to the CITY and ENGINEER desires to perform the same;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the CITY and the ENGINEER, in consideration of the mutual covenants and 
agreements herein contained, do mutually agree as follows:  
 
 

SECTION 1 
SCOPE OF AGREEMENT 

 
The ENGINEER agrees to provide the services as defined in Attachments"A” and “A-1" and any 
Amendments attached hereto and made a part hereof, and for having provided said services, the CITY 
agrees to pay the ENGINEER compensation as stated in the sections to follow. This Agreement takes 
precedence over all attachments in the event of conflicting terms and conditions.  
 
 

SECTION 2 
CHARACTER AND EXTENT OF WORK 

 
The ENGINEER shall provide the services as defined in Attachments "A” and “A-1" and any Amendments 
attached hereto. The CITY shall be under no obligation to pay for services rendered without prior 
authorization.  
 
 

SECTION 3  
TIME FOR PERFORMANCE 

 
The work shall be performed in accordance with Attachments"A” and “A-1". Upon written request of the 
ENGINEER, the CITY may grant time extensions to the extent of any delays caused by the CITY or other 
agencies with which the work must be coordinated and over which the ENGINEER has no control.  
 

 
 

reneel
Text Box
Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-1962



Page 2 of 10 

 

SECTION 4  
COMPLIANCE AND STANDARDS 

 
ENGINEER agrees to provide services hereunder in accordance with generally accepted standards 
applicable thereto and shall use that degree of care and skill commensurate with the ENGINEER's trade or 
profession to comply with all applicable state, federal, and local laws, ordinances, rules, and regulations  
and the orders and decrees of any courts, administrative, or regulatory bodies in any matter affecting the 
performance of the Agreement, including, without limitation, worker’s compensations laws, minimum and 
maximum salary and wage statutes and regulations and licensing laws and regulations.  When required, the 
Engineer shall furnish the City with satisfactory proof of compliance.  
 
 

SECTION 5 
CHANGES TO THE PROJECT; ADDITIONAL WORK 

 
Engineer shall make such revisions to any work that has been completed as are necessary to correct any 
errors or omissions as may appear in such work.  If the City finds it necessary to make changes to 
previously satisfactorily completed work or parts thereof, the Engineer shall make such revisions if 
requested and as directed by the City and such services will be considered as additional work and paid for as 
specified under following paragraph. 
 
The City retains the right to make changes to the Scope of Work at any time by a written order.  Work that 
is clearly not within the general description of the Scope of Work and not does not otherwise constitute 
special services under this Agreement must be approved in writing by the City by supplemental agreement 
before the additional work is undertaken by the Engineer.  If the Engineer is of the opinion that any work is 
beyond that contemplated in this Agreement and the Scope of Work governing the project and therefore 
constitutes additional work, the Engineer shall promptly notify the City of that opinion, in writing.  If the 
City agrees that such work does constitute additional work, then the City and the Engineer shall execute a 
supplemental agreement for the additional work and the City shall compensate the Engineer for the 
additional work on the basis of the rates contained in the Scope of Work.  If the changes deduct from the 
extent of the Scope of Work, the contract sum shall be adjusted accordingly.  All such changes shall be 
executed under the conditions of the original Agreement 

 
 

SECTION 6 
INDEMNIFICATION 

 
ENGINEER shall and does hereby agree to indemnify and hold harmless the CITY, and all of its 
present, future and former agents, employees, officials and representatives harmless in their official, 
individual and representative capacities, from any and all claims, demands, causes of action, 
judgments, liens and expenses (including attorney’s fees, whether contractual or statutory), costs and 
damages (whether common law or statutory), costs and damages (whether common law or statutory, 
and whether actual, punitive, consequential or incidental), of any conceivable character, for injuries 
to persons (including death) or to property (both real and personal) created by, arising from or in any 
manner relating to the services or goods performed or provided by Engineer – expressly including 
those arising through strict liability or under the constitutions of the United States or Texas – BUT 
ONLY TO THE EXTENT ALLOWABLE BY SEC. 271.904 (a) OF THE TEXAS LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT CODE.   
 



Page 3 of 10 

 

SECTION 7 
FORCE MAJEURE 

 
Force Majeure. Neither ENGINEER, its suppliers nor CITY will be liable for any failure or delay in this 
Agreement due to any cause beyond its reasonable control, including acts of war, acts of God, earthquake, 
flood, embargo, riot, sabotage, labor shortage or dispute, governmental act or failure of the Internet (not 
resulting from the negligence or willful misconduct of ENGINEER), provided that the delayed party: (a) 
gives the other party prompt notice of such cause, and (b) uses its reasonable commercial efforts to 
promptly correct such failure or delay in performance. If ENGINEER is unable to provide services for a 
period of ten (10) consecutive days as a result of a continuing force majeure event, CITY may cancel the 
services order without penalty.  
 
 

SECTION 8  
THE ENGINEER'S COMPENSATION 

 
For and in consideration of the services rendered by the ENGINEER pursuant to this Agreement, the CITY 
shall pay the ENGINEER the amount of $749,761 for “Basic Services” and up to an additional $228,804 for 
“Additional Services” which shall be considered as the total maximum fee in the amount not to exceed 
$978,565. 
The limit of appropriation is addressed in Section 13.  
 
 

SECTION 9  
TIME OF PAYMENT 

 
Payment by the CITY to the ENGINEER shall be made as follows:  
ENGINEER shall be provided a purchase order number from the CITY and such number shall be referenced 
on all invoices submitted to the CITY. Upon completion of the work, ENGINEER shall submit to the City 
Manager or designee an invoice, in a form acceptable to the CITY, setting forth the charges for the services 
provided which were delivered during such billing period, and the compensation which is due for same. If 
the project work shall take in excess of thirty (30) calendar days, then such invoice shall be submitted to the 
CITY on or about the first of each month. The City Manager shall review the same and approve it with such 
modifications, as deemed appropriate. The CITY shall pay each invoice as approved by the City Manager 
within thirty (30) days after receipt of a true and correct invoice by the CITY. The approval or payment of 
any such invoice shall not be considered to be evidence of performance by the ENGINEER to the point 
indicated by such invoice or of the receipt of or acceptance by the CITY of the services covered by such 
invoice.  
Invoices shall be submitted to the following address:  
 

City of Rosenberg 
Attn: Project Director 

      P.O. Box 32 
2110 4th Street 
Rosenberg, Texas  77471 
 

Invoices submitted without a purchase order number will be returned unpaid. Failure to submit invoices to 
the above address will delay payment. DO NOT submit invoices to any other address for payment. The 
City’s payments under the Contract, including the time of payment and the payment of interest on overdue 



Page 4 of 10 

 

amounts, are subject to Chapter 2251, Texas Government Code. 
 

 
SECTION 10  

TIME OF COMPLETION 
 
The prompt completion of the services under which the Scope of Work relates is critical to the City.  
Unnecessary delays in providing services under the Scope of Work shall be grounds for dismissal of the 
Engineer and termination of this Agreement without any or further liability to the City other than a prorated 
payment for necessary, timely, and conforming work done by Engineer prior to the time of termination.  
The Scope of Work shall provide, in either calendar days or by providing a final date, a time of completion 
prior to which the Engineer shall have completed all tasks and services described in the Scope of Work. 
 
 

SECTION 11  
TERMINATION 

 
This Agreement may be terminated: 
 
(1)  By the mutual agreement and consent of both Engineer and City; 
 
(2)  By either party, upon the failure of the other party to fulfill its obligations as set forth in either this 
Agreement or a Scope of Work issued under this Agreement; 
 
(3)  By the City, immediately upon notice in writing to the Engineer, as consequence of the failure of 
Engineer to perform the services contemplated by this Agreement in a timely or satisfactory manner; 
 
(4)  By the City, at will and without cause upon not less than thirty (30) days written notice to the Engineer. 
 
(5)  If the City terminates this Agreement pursuant to Section 10 above, or subsection 11 (2) or (3), above, 
the Engineer shall not be entitled to any fees or reimbursable expenses other than the fees and reimbursable 
expenses then due and payable as of the time of termination and only then for those services that have been 
timely and adequately performed by the Engineer considering the actual costs incurred by the Engineer in 
performing work to date of termination, the value of the work that is nonetheless usable to the City, the cost 
to the City of employing another engineer to complete the work required and the time required to do so, and 
other factors that affect the value to the City of the work performed at time of termination.  In the event of 
termination not the fault of the Engineer, the Engineer shall be compensated for all basic, special, and 
additional services actually performed prior to termination, together with any reimbursable expenses then 
due. 
 

SECTION 12  
ADDRESS AND NOTICES AND COMMUNICATIONS 

 
The parties contemplate that they will engage in informal communications with respect to the subject matter 
of this Agreement. However, any formal notices or other communications ("Notice") required to be given 
by one party to the other by this Agreement shall be given in writing addressed to the party to be notified at 
the address set forth below for such party, (i) by delivering the same in person, (ii) by depositing the same in 
the United States Mail, certified or registered, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, addressed to the 
party to be notified, or (iii) by depositing the same with a nationally recognized courier service guaranteeing 



Page 5 of 10 

 

"next day delivery," addressed to the party to be notified, (iv) by sending the same by telefax with 
confirming copy sent by mail, or (v) by sending the same by electronic mail with confirming copy sent by 
mail. Notice deposited in the United States mail in the manner hereinabove described shall be deemed 
effective from and after the date of such deposit. Notice given in any other manner shall be effective only if 
and when received by the party to be notified. For the purposes of notice, the addresses of the parties, until 
changed by providing written notice in accordance hereunder, shall be as follows:  
 
All notices and communications under this Agreement shall be mailed to the ENGINEER at the following 
address: 
 

Landtech Consultants, Inc. 
Attention:  Glenn D. Graham, PE 
Vice President 
2525 North Loop West, Suite 300 
Houston, TX 77008-1094 
Telephone:(713) 861-7068 
Email:ggraham@landtech-inc.com 

 
 

All notices and communications under this Agreement shall be mailed to the CITY at the following address:  
City of Rosenberg 
Attn: Robert Gracia, City Manager 

      P.O. Box 32 
2110 4th Street 
Rosenberg, Texas 77471 
(832) 595-3310 
robertg@ci.rosenberg.tx.us 

 
 

SECTION 13 
LIMIT OF APPROPRIATION 

 
Prior to the execution of this Agreement, ENGINEER has been advised by the CITY and ENGINEER 
clearly understands and agrees, such understanding and agreement being of the absolute essence to this 
Agreement, that the CITY shall have available the amount budgeted for this project to discharge any and all 
liabilities which may be incurred by the CITY pursuant to this Agreement and that the total maximum 
compensation that the ENGINEER may become entitled to hereunder and the total maximum sum that the 
CITY shall become liable to pay to ENGINEER hereunder shall not under any conditions, circumstances, or 
interpretations, hereof, exceed the said total maximum sum provided for in this section without prior written 
permission from the CITY.  
 

SECTION 14  
SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

 
The CITY and the ENGINEER bind themselves and their successors, executors, administrators, and assigns 
to the other party of this Agreement and to the successors, executors, administrators and assigns of such 
other party, in respect to all covenants of this Agreement. Neither the CITY nor the ENGINEER shall 
assign, sublet or transfer its or his interest in this Agreement without the written consent of the other, which 
consent will not be unreasonably withheld. Subcontractors shall comply with all provisions of this 



Page 6 of 10 

 

Agreement and the applicable Scope of Work.  The approval or acquiescence of the City in subletting of 
any work shall not relieve the Engineer of any responsibility for work done by such subcontractor.  Nothing 
herein shall be construed as creating any personal liability on the part of any officer or agent of any public 
body, which may be a party hereto.  
 
 

SECTION 15 
OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS 

 
Upon completion or termination of this Agreement, all documents prepared by the Engineer or furnished to 
the Engineer by the City shall be delivered to and become the property of the City.  All drawings, charts, 
calculations, plans, specifications and other data prepared under or pursuant to this Agreement shall be 
made available, upon request, to the City without restriction or limitation on the further use of such 
materials PROVIDED, HOWEVER, THAT SUCH MATERIALS ARE NOT INTENDED OR 
REPRESENTED TO BE SUITABLE FOR REUSE BY THE CITY OR OTHERS.  ANY REUSE 
WITHOUT PRIOR VERIFICATION OR ADAPTATION BY THE ENGINEER FOR THE SPECIFIC 
PURPOSE INTENDED WILL BE AT THE CITY’S SOLE RISK AND WITHOUT LIABILITY TO THE 
ENGINEER.  Where applicable, Engineer shall retain all pre-existing proprietary rights in the materials 
provided to the City but shall grant the City a non-exclusive, perpetual, royalty-free license to use such 
proprietary information solely for the purpose for which the information was provided.  The Engineer may, 
at Engineer’s expense, have copies made of the documents or any other data furnished to the City under or 
pursuant to this Agreement. 
 

 
SECTION 16 

ENGINEER’S SEAL 
 

The Engineer shall place the Texas Professional Engineer’s seal of endorsement of the principal engineer on 
all documents and engineering data furnished by the Engineer to the City.  All work and services provided 
under this Agreement will be performed in a good and workmanlike fashion and shall conform to the 
accepted standards and practices of the engineering profession.  The plans, specifications and engineering 
data provided by Engineer shall be adequate and sufficient to enable those performing the actual 
construction of the work to perform the work as and within the time contemplated by the City and Engineer.  
The City acknowledges that Engineer has no control over the methods or means of construction nor the 
costs of labor, materials or equipment.  Unless otherwise agreed in writing, any estimates of construction 
costs by the Engineer are for informational purposes only and are not guarantees. 
 
 

SECTION 17 
INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

 
Engineer acknowledges that Engineer is an independent contractor of the City and is not an employee, 
agent, official or representative of the City.  Engineer shall not represent, either expressly or through 
implication, that Engineer is an employee, agent, official or representative of the City.  Income taxes, self-
employment taxes, social security taxes and the like are the sole responsibility of the Engineer. 
 
 

SECTION 18 
NON-COLLUSION 



Page 7 of 10 

 

 
Engineer represents and warrants that Engineer has not given, made, promised or paid, nor offered to give, 
make, promise or pay any gift, bonus, commission, money or other consideration to any person as an 
inducement to or in order to obtain the work to be provided to the City under this Agreement.  Engineer 
further agrees that Engineer shall not accept any gift, bonus, commission, money, or other consideration 
from any person (other than from the City pursuant to this Agreement) for any of the services performed by 
Engineer under or related to this Agreement.  If any such gift, bonus, commission, money, or other 
consideration is received by or offered to Engineer, Engineer shall immediately report that fact to the City 
and, at the sole option of the City, the City may elect to accept the consideration for itself or to take the 
value of such consideration as a credit against the compensation otherwise owing to Engineer under or 
pursuant to this Agreement. 
 
 

SECTION 19  
MEDIA 

 
Contact with the news media shall be the sole responsibility of the CITY. ENGINEER shall under no 
circumstances release any material or information developed in the performance of its work hereunder 
without the express written permission of the CITY.  

 
 

SECTION 20  
AUTHORITY OF CITY MANAGER 

 
All work to be performed by the ENGINEER hereunder shall be performed to the satisfaction of the City 
Manager. The City Manager shall decide any and all questions, which may arise as to the quality, or 
acceptability of the work performed by the ENGINEER and the decisions of the City Manager in such 
cases shall be final and binding on both parties. However, nothing contained herein shall be construed to 
authorize the City Manager to alter, vary or amend this Agreement.  

 
 

SECTION 21  
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

 
A current certificate of insurance with the City named as an additional insured is required to be submitted 
to the Purchasing Office before the City will enter into a contract with a vendor. 
 
A. POLICY REQUIREMENTS  
 

Prior to the approval of this contract by the City, Engineer shall furnish a completed insurance 
certificate to the Purchasing Office, which shall be completed by an agent authorized to bind the 
named underwriter(s) to the coverage, limits, and termination provisions shown thereon, and which 
shall furnish and contain all required information referenced or indicated thereon. CITY SHALL 
HAVE NO DUTY TO PAY OR PERFORM UNDER THIS CONTRACT UNTIL SUCH 
CERTIFICATE SHALL HAVE BEEN DELIVERED TO THE CITY, and no officer or employee of 
the City shall have authority to waive this requirement.  

 
B. INSURANCE COVERAGE REQUIRED  
 



Page 8 of 10 

 

Worker's Compensation -Statutory and Employers Liability with minimum limits of $500,000 each 
accident and $1,000,000 each employee; Commercial General (public) Liability insurance minimum 
limits of $1,000,000 each occurrence including coverage Comprehensive Automobile Combined 
single limit for liability insurance, including bodily injury and property coverage of $1,000,000 each 
accident.  

 
C. ADDITIONAL POLICY ENDORSEMENTS  
 

CITY shall be entitled, upon request, and without expense, to receive copies of the policies and all 
endorsements thereto and may make any reasonable request for deletion, revision, or modification of 
particular policy terms, conditions, limitations, or exclusions (except where policy provisions are 
established by law or regulation binding upon either of the parties hereto or the underwriter of any of 
such policies). Upon such request by CITY, ENGINEER shall exercise reasonable efforts to 
accomplish such changes in policy coverage, and shall pay the cost thereof.  

 
D. REQUIRED PROVISIONS  
 

ENGINEER agrees with the respect to the above required insurance, all insurance contracts and 
certificate(s) of insurance will contain and state, in writing, on the certificate or its attachment, 
the following required provisions:  

 
1. Name the City of Rosenberg and its officers, employees, and elected 

representatives as an additional insured;  
2. Provide for notice to City upon cancellation;  
3. Provide for an endorsement that the "other insurance" clause shall not apply to the 

City of Rosenberg where CITY is an additional insured shown on the policy;  
4. Provide for notice to the City at the address shown;  
5. ENGINEER agrees to waive subrogation against the City of Rosenberg, its officers, 

employees, and elected representatives for injuries, including death, property damage, 
or any other loss to the extent same may be covered by the proceeds of insurance;  

 
E. NOTICES  
 

ENGINEER shall notify CITY in the event of any change in coverage and shall give such notices not 
less than 30 days prior to the change, which notice must be accompanied by a replacement 
CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE. All notices shall be given to CITY at the following address:  

City of Rosenberg 
Attn: Robert Gracia 

         P.O. Box 32 
2110 4th Street 
Rosenberg, Texas 77471 

 
F. APPROVAL 
 

Approval, disapproval, or failure to act by CITY regarding any insurance supplied by ENGINEER 
shall not relieve ENGINEER of full responsibility or liability for damages and accidents as set forth 
in the contract documents. Neither shall the bankruptcy, insolvency, or denial of liability by the 
insurance company exonerate ENGINEER from liability.  

 



Page 9 of 10 

 

SECTION 22  
MODIFICATIONS 

 
This instrument, including Attachments "A" and “A-1” and any Amendments attached hereto contains the 
entire Agreement between the parties relating to the rights herein granted and the obligations herein 
assumed. In the event of any conflict between this instrument and/or Attachments “A” and “A-1”, the CITY 
acting through the City Manager at his sole discretion shall determine which provision prevails. Any oral or 
written representations or modifications concerning this instrument shall be of no force and effect excepting 
a subsequent modification in writing signed by both parties hereto.  
 

SECTION 23  
FISCAL FUNDING 

 
The CITY's fiscal year is October 1st through September 30th. If this contract extends beyond September 
30, 2015, there shall be a fiscal funding out. If, for any reason, funds are not appropriated to continue the 
contract in the new fiscal year, said contract shall become null and void on the last day of the current 
appropriation of funds. Contract will then be terminated without penalty of any kind or form to the CITY.  
 

SECTION 24 
CHOICE OF LAW 

 
This Agreement and all the transactions contemplated herein shall be governed by the laws of the State of 
Texas.  Exclusive venue for any action arising out this Agreement shall be in Fort Bend County, Texas and 
ENGINEER hereby consents to such jurisdiction and venue.  
 

SECTION 25  
SEVERABILITY 

 
In the event that any provision(s) of this Agreement shall for any reason be held invalid, illegal, or 
unenforceable, the invalidity, illegality or unenforceability of that provision(s) shall not affect any other 
provision(s) of this Agreement, and it shall further be construed as if the invalid, illegal, or unenforceable 
provision(s) had never been a part of this Agreement. This document and included Attachments is the entire 
Agreement and recites the full consideration between the parties, there being no other written agreement.  
 

SECTION 26 
CUMULATIVE REMEDIES 

 
In the event of default by any party herein, all other parties shall have all rights and remedies afforded to it 
at law or in equity to recover damages and to interpret or enforce the terms of this Agreement.  The exercise 
of any one right or remedy shall be without prejudice to the enforcement of any other right or remedy 
allowed at law or in equity. 
 

SECTION 27 
WAIVER 

 
The failure on the part of any party herein at any time to require the performance by any other party of any 
portion of this Agreement shall not be deemed a waiver of, or in any way affect that party’s rights to enforce 
such provision or any other provision.  Any waiver by any party herein of any provision hereof shall not be 
taken or held to be a waiver of any other provision hereof or any other breach hereof. 



Page 10 of 10 

 

 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, said City of Rosenberg has lawfully caused these presents to be executed by the 
City Manager of said CITY and the said ENGINEER, acting by its thereunto duly authorized representative, 
does now sign, execute and deliver this instrument.  
 
Authorized by the City of Rosenberg, Texas on the ____day of______________2015,  
 
 
Landtech Consultants, INC. 
 
             
Glenn Graham, PE 
Vice President 
 
_______________________ 
Date  
 
 
CITY OF ROSENBERG 
 
     
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 
 
     
Date 
 
 
Attest: 
 
________________________ 
Linda Cernosek 
City Secretary 



 
 

LANDTECH CONSULTANTS, INC. 
Civil Engineering • Land Surveying 

 

2525 North Loop West, Suite 300 • Houston, Texas 77008-1094 • Tel: (713) 861-7068 • Fax: (713) 861-4131 
 

May 14, 2015 
 
Mr. John Maresh 
Assistant City Manager of Public Services 
City of Rosenberg 
2110 4th Street 
PO Box 32 
Rosenberg, Texas 77471-0032 
 
Re: Bryan Road Reconstruction 
 From FM 2218 to approximately 760 feet east of Spacek Road & 
 Spacek Road from Bryan Road to South of Herbie Drive 
       
      PROJECT PROPOSAL 
 
 
Dear Mr. Maresh: 
 
Landtech Consultants, Inc. is pleased to present this proposal for the PS&E design and construction 
phase engineering services for the above referenced project.  
 
1.0 PROJECT INFORMATION 
 
We understand the project involves the proposed widening from two lane undivided roadway to four 
lane boulevard of Bryan Road from FM 2218 to approximately 760 feet east of Spacek Road and 
Spacek Road from Bryan Road to South of Herbie Drive. The project includes realigned extension of 
Bryan Road at west end to intersect FM 2218 and align with existing Bryan Road west of FM 2218. 
The intersection at Bryan Road and Spacek Road is to be converted from a T-intersection into a four-
legged intersection with northbound approach added. The project also includes replacement of existing 
single bridge over Dry Creek Bayou with twin bridges. The alignment length for Bryan Road is 
approximately 6,800 feet and for Spacek Road is approximately 1,600 feet. The total length of the 
project is approximately 8,400 feet. 
 
2.0 SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
Project Management. This involves the coordination and meeting with the City staff on a regular basis 
to review project progress; development and maintaining project schedules, budgets, and monthly 
progress reports and invoices. 
 
Topographic Survey. Establish horizontal and vertical survey control including TBMs every 1000 feet; 
survey 100 foot cross sections plus grade breaks; survey full width of existing or proposed ROW plus 
additional 25 feet both sides; include all visible structures, features, and utilities. Survey Dry Creek for 



 

2525 North Loop West, Suite 300 • Houston, Texas 77008-1094 • Tel: (713) 861-7068 • Fax: (713) 861-4131 

300 feet centered on Bryan Road at 50-ft intervals.  2D and 3D mapping. Utility mapping in plan and 
profile.  Survey Control Map.  Includes Right of Entry.  Includes Utility Research. 
ROW Survey and Mapping. An estimate of 40 parcels to be surveyed and mapped.  Deliverables will 
be strip map showing all parcels along proposed route and metes and bounds description and parcel 
plat for each parcel taking. 
 
Geotechnical Engineering Services. This includes field program, laboratory testing, and engineering 
report. Field program consists of drilling 6 test borings to depths of 25 feet and 12 borings to depths of 
10 feet within pavement of the proposed roadway alignment and two test borings to depths of 80 feet 
within the area of the proposed bridge reconstruction. The total drilled footage is planned to be 430 
feet. 
 
Roadway and Drainage Design. Roadway design includes proposed horizontal and vertical alignments, 
typical sections, plan and profile sheets, pavement markings and signing, traffic control plans, storm 
water pollution prevention plans, cross-sections, details and standards, and quantities and cost 
estimates. Drainage design includes preparing overall drainage watershed map and calculations for the 
drainage area divides, preparing detailed drainage area maps, detailed hydraulic calculations, storm 
sewer design and plan and profile data. 
 
Bridge Design. This includes reviewing soil boring data and geotechnical analysis report, preparing 
bridge layout plans, calculations and detail design of the twin bridges. 
 
TxDOT Permits. Prepare, submit, and obtain TxDOT permit for FM 2218 connection. Prepare signal 
warrant study for traffic signal at FM 2218 intersection if determined to be necessary. 
 
Bid Phase and Construction Phase Services. Assist the City in bidding process. Analysis and review 
bids, and provide recommendation of award letter. Review and approve submittals, shop drawings, 
RFIs. Prepare Change Order Requests. Prepare pay estimate. Conduct field visits, and attend monthly 
construction progress meetings. 
 
3.0 COMPENSATION 
 
For the scope of services outlined in this letter, we submit a cost not to exceed $978,565.00. 
Attachments A1, B, & C provide a scope of services, a breakdown of man-hours and budget 
requirements for individual tasks associated with the project, and project schedule. Attachment D 
contains the scope and fee proposals for the sub-consultants. 
 
We appreciate the opportunity to submit this proposal for your consideration. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
 
 
 

Glenn Graham, P.E. 
Vice President 



 

2525 North Loop West, Suite 300 • Houston, Texas 77008-1094 • Tel: (713) 861-7068 • Fax: (713) 861-4131 

 
Attachments 
A1 – Scope of Services 
B – Fee Proposal 
C – Project Schedule 
D1 – Geotechnical Engineering Proposal 
D2 – Urban Forestry Services Proposal 
 



1 
 

Attachment A-1 

SCOPE OF SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED BY THE ENGINEER 

Scope of Services to Perform Design and 
Prepare Plans, Specifications, and Estimate, and Provide Construction Phase 

Engineering Services 
 

Bryan Road - From FM 2218 to Approximately 760 feet east of Spacek Road 
Spacek Road – from Bryan Road to south of Herbie Drive 

 
 

General Scope of Project 
 
The work to be performed by the Engineer under this contract consists of providing preliminary and final 
design services for the project, coordination with City and County, and preparation of construction 
documents containing plans, specifications and details pertaining to paving, grading, drainage, storm 
sewers, bridge design, sidewalk, storm water pollution prevention, pavement markings, demolition, utility 
relocations, sequence of construction and traffic control plans, construction cost estimate and time of 
construction estimate.  Supplementary topographic survey and ROW documents will be provided by the 
Engineer. 
 
The project involves the proposed widening from two lane undivided roadway to four lane boulevard of 
Bryan Road from FM 2218 to approximately 760 feet east of Spacek Road and Spacek Road from Bryan 
Road to South of Herbie Drive. The project includes realigned extension of Bryan Road at west end to 
intersect FM 2218 and align with existing Bryan Road west of FM 2218. The intersection at Bryan Road 
and Spacek Road is to be converted from a T-intersection into a four-legged intersection with northbound 
approach added. The project also includes replacement of existing single bridge over Dry Creek Bayou 
with twin bridges. The alignment length for Bryan Road is approximately 6,800 feet and for Spacek Road 
is approximately 1,600 feet. The total length is approximately 8,400 feet. 
 
Types of Service 
 
The engineering services to be performed by the Engineer are those services which are necessary for the 
preparation of designs, construction plans, specifications, and other items of work related thereto, all of 
which are hereinafter referred to as the “Design Phase Services.”  Engineering services to be performed 
also include Construction Phase Engineering Services. These services will include, but are not limited to 
the general type and classifications listed in the following: 
 

I. Project Management 
 
A. Develop and Maintain 

 
1. Project Schedules 
2. Budgets 
3. Monthly Progress Reports and Invoices 

 
B. Meet with the City staff on a regular basis to review project progress. 

 
C. Coordinate and review the work produced to comply with the City and County policies and 

procedures, and to deliver that work on time.  Comply with all applicable laws, ordinances 
and codes of the State and local governments. 

 
D. Field Reconnaissance.  Travel to the project to inspect features along and adjacent to the 

roadway to assist in making decisions concerning roadway design, drainage design, 
sequence of construction, and ROW acquisition. 

 



2 
 

E. Develop and implement Quality Control and Quality Assurance program. 
 

F. Coordinate identification of utility conflicts and monitor relocation status.  Utilities include 
but are not limited to AT&T, Comcast, CPE Gas, CPE Power, Petroleum Pipeline 
Companies and Phonoscope. 

 
II. Roadway Design 

 
A. Prepare existing typical section of Bryan Road and Spacek Road. 

 
 

B. Prepare proposed typical sections of Bryan Road and Spacek Road that show lane 
configuration and pavement structure. Typical sections should include sidewalk on one 
side of the road. 

 
C. Prepare proposed typical sections of intersecting streets that show lane configuration and 

pavement structure at: 
 

 Oakland Valley Drive 
 Spacek Road (intersection at Bryan Road converted from T-intersection to four-

legged intersection) 
 Reconnection to existing Bryan Road  
 Walnut Glen Lane 
 Pisces Street 
 FM 2218 

 
D. Prepare horizontal alignment data sheets for Bryan Road and Spacek Road and 

intersecting streets, including bench marks (1” = 50’). 
 

E. Prepare project site map (1” = 100’). 
 

F. Prepare roadway plan and profile sheets for Bryan Road and Spacek Road  (1” = 20’ H, 1” 
= 2’ V) showing horizontal and vertical geometric designs, which will be based on the 
approved schematic.  Refine the horizontal and vertical alignments as needed for the 
detailed PS&E phase design. 

 
G. Prepare intersection layout and grading sheets to include top of pavement elevations of 

the following intersecting streets (to go beyond ROW as needed to determine high/low 
points):  

 
 Oakland Valley Drive 
 Spacek Road (converted from T-intersection to four-legged intersection) 
 Reconnection to existing Bryan Road 
 Walnut Glen Lane 
 Pisces Street 
 FM 2218 

 
H. Prepare a table showing the quantities, station, radii, width, and grade for driveway 

reconstruction.  Identify locations and limits for temporary construction easements 
 

I. Identify and modify as necessary standard roadway detail sheets for conformance with City 
of Rosenberg standard details. 

 
J. Show existing ROW with bearings and distances on plan and profile sheets for reference 

to insure all proposed improvements are fully located within ROW.  
 

III. Drainage Design 



3 
 

 
A. Prepare overall drainage watershed map and calculations for the drainage area divides.  

All calculations and drainage area will be in conformance with the approved 
Hydrology/Hydraulic Study included as part of the project scope. 

 
B. Prepare detailed drainage area maps necessary to perform the design of storm sewer 

system and bridge. 
 

C. Prepare detailed hydraulic calculations necessary to perform the design of the storm sewer 
system and bridge. 

 
D. Include storm sewer plan and profile data on intersection plan and profile sheets, which 

will include plan and profile information for storm sewers, manholes, inlets, and existing 
utilities. 

 
E. Include intersection storm sewer plan and profile data on intersection plan and profile 

sheets, which will include plan and profile information for storm sewers, manholes, inlets 
and existing utilities. 

 
F. Prepare storm sewer lateral sheets (1” = 20’). 

 
G. Prepare outfall typical sections (1” = 5’). 

 
H. Prepare outfall plan and profile sheet (1” = 20’) for storm drain and Dry Creek Crossing. 

 
I. Identify and modify as necessary standard drainage details sheets. 

 
J. Survey beyond ROW, as needed to determine high/low points for drainage.  

 

K. Prepare detailed Storm Design modeling and calculations necessary to determine the 
Bridge Hydraulic Capacity. 

 

L. Submit Bridge Hydraulic Calculations to Fort Bend County Drainage District for approval.  
 

IV. Bridge Design 
 

A. Review soil boring data and geotechnical analysis report. Prepare Bridge Layout plans and 
elevations for both Eastbound Bridge and Westbound Bridge over Dry Creek (1” = 20’). All 
bridge layouts shall contain geotechnical boring locations. 

 
B. Prepare bridge typical section sheets (1” = 5’). Typical sections should include sidewalks. 

 
C. Prepare Final Design Calculations and Details. All bridge structures shall be designed for 

HL 93 loading. 
 

D. Prepare bridge framing plan (1”=20’). 
 

E. Prepare bridge quantity sheets. 
 

V. Utilities 
 

A. Include existing water line/sanitary sewer data on roadway plan and profile sheets. 
 

B. Using pipe sizing provided by the City design proposed water line and include on roadway 
plan and profile sheets. 



4 
 

 
C. Using pipe sizing provided by the City design proposed sanitary sewer and include on 

roadway plan and profile sheets. 
 

D. Using pipe sizing provided by the City design proposed reuse water 
transmission/distribution line and include on roadway plan and profile sheets. 

 
E. Include proposed water line lines on P&P sheets (1” = 20’). 

 
F. Include proposed sanitary sewer lines on P&P sheets (1” = 20’). 

 
G. Include proposed reuse water lines on P&P sheets (1” = 20”). 

 
H. Prepare water line detail sheets in conformance with City of Rosenberg standard details.  

 
I. Prepare sanitary sewer line detail sheets in conformance with the City of Rosenberg 

standard details. 
 

J. Prepare reuse water transmission/distribution line detail sheets in conformance with the 
City of Rosenberg standard details. 

 

K. Include Landscape Irrigation sleeves to connect grass medians.  
 

VI. Signing, Pavement Marking, and Signalization 
 

A. Prepare proposed layouts showing signs and pavement markings (1” = 20’ – double bank).  
Design of permanent signing and markings will be in accordance with the 2014 Texas 
Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD) for Streets and Highways (latest 
revision). 

 
B. Prepare summary of small signs.  Summary will include sign number, text, size, post, 

anchor and mounting information. 
 

C. Identify and modify as necessary standard and modified pavement marking detail sheets. 
 

D. Perform traffic signal warrant study for the intersection of FM 2218 at Bryan Road if 
determined to be necessary. 

 
VII. Traffic Control 

 
A. Prepare advanced warning sign layout (1” = 1000’). 

 
B. Prepare sequence of construction with general traffic control plan layout. 

 
C. Prepare traffic control plan for each stage (1” = 1000’ double bank). 

 
D. Prepare construction sequencing and traffic control plan layouts for each stage (1” = 40’). 

 
E. Prepare detour layout sheet to detour through traffic around construction. 

 
F. Identify and modify as necessary standard construction and barricade detail sheets. 

 
VIII. Miscellaneous Roadway 

 
A. Prepare Title Sheet for project. 



5 
 

 
B. Prepare Index Sheet.  Index Sheet will include a listing of the required standards. 

 
C. Prepare General Notes sheet and include notes applicable for grading, paving, drainage, 

and utilities. 
 

D. Prepare storm water pollution prevention plans (SW3P) (1” = 40’ double bank) showing 
temporary control measures during each phase of construction. Prepare NOI and SWMP 
forms/sheets. 

 
E. Include demolition plans for SW3P sheets, showing existing structures and pavement to 

be removed along the project corridor, which will require removal or relocation due to the 
proposed improvements. 

 
F. Earthwork Cross-Sections (1” = 40’ H, 1” = 10’ V) showing existing and proposed roadway 

sections will be prepared every 100’ for the proposed roadway.  The cross-sections will be 
generated from vertical topographic information 

 
G. Compute and tabulate construction quantities and prepare estimate.  Estimates will be 

prepared and submitted with each review submittal at 30%, 60%, 90% and 100%. 
 

H. Develop a tree protection plan, if determined to be necessary. 
 

I. Provide for the preparation of a geotechnical analysis report of the proposed roadway and 
bridges. 

 

J. Coordinate and attend up to 3 public meetings for the project. One during the planning 
stage, one prior to commencement of construction and one as determined by the City. 

 
K. Attend City Council meetings and provide update reports at appropriate project design 

milestones to be determined by City Staff and the Engineer. 
 
 

L. Prepare and submit required construction documents to Texas Department of Licensing 
Regulation (TDLR) for review of sidewalk design. 
 

M. Prepare and submit permit documents to secure permit from Fort Bend County Drainage 
District. 

 

 
N. Prepare and submit traffic signal warrant study for intersection of FM 2218 at Bryan Road 

if determined to be necessary. 
 
IX. Bid Phase 
 

A. Prepare construction bid package to include Notice to Bidders, Instruction and Information 
to Bidders, Bid Proposal Form, Standard Form of Agreement, Bond Forms, General 
Conditions, Special Conditions if any, Technical Specifications and Construction Plans, in 
accordance with City of Rosenberg standards. 

 
B. Provide electronic copy of all documents to local plan review rooms (4 minimum) and post 

on CivCast. 
 

C. Attend and coordinate pre-bid meeting. 



6 
 

 

D. Answer Contractor questions and prepare any required addenda. 
 

E. Attend bid opening, tabulate, analyze and review bids for completeness and accuracy. 
 

F. Provide review on Contractors references. 
 

G. Provide bid tabulation and recommendation of award letter.  
 

X. Construction Phase 
 

A.  Provide fifteen (15) hard copy sets and three (3) pdf CDs for construction drawings, project 
manual, and posted addenda for construction. (City to confirm # of ½ size and full size sets 
prior to printing.  

 
B. Conduct pre-construction conference and prepare copy of report/minutes. 
 
C. Attend and coordinate monthly construction progress meetings and prepare copies of 

reports/minutes.  Post to FTP site if requested by City. 
 
D. Review and approve submittals, shop drawings, RFIs, prepare Change Order Requests 

(including revisions to plan sheets and specifications), and make recommendations to City.  
 

E. Make periodic visits to the site, no less than every thirty (30) days during the construction 
period, to observe the progress and quality of the work, and to determine in general if the 
work is proceeding in accordance with the Contract Documents.  

 

F. Reestablish horizontal and vertical controls as needed at commencement of Construction 
Phase. 
 

G. Prepare pay estimates based on quantities reviewed by City inspection staff, for signatures 
by contractor and engineer. Forward one executed copy to City for payment.  

 
H. Conduct interim, final, and one-year warranty inspections.  Prepare master punch list 

developed in conjunction with City Staff. 
 

I. Request final TDLR inspection. Accompany TDLR compliance consultants on sidewalk 
inspection. 

 
J. Revise contract drawings to show the work as actually constructed (based on contractor 

mark ups), and furnish the City with three (3) sets of “record drawings” plans, two (2) pdf 
CDs, and GIS format.  

 

K. Prepare and provide final acceptance letter from engineer of record. 
 
 

 
 



Fee Proposal

Bryan Road Reconstruction Project

Client: City of Rosenberg

Project: Bryan Road

Date: 05/14/2015

Basic Services

Classification Hours Billing Rate Labor

Principal 8 $262.50 $2,100

Sr. Project Manager 281 $225.00 $63,225

Senior Engineer 996 $191.58 $190,814

Professional Engineer 874 $165.00 $144,210

Project Engineer 650 $143.00 $92,950

Engineering Technician 958 $105.00 $100,590

CADD Technician 1,472 $85.00 $125,120

Drafter 464 $62.00 $28,768

Clerical 32 $62.00 $1,984

Total Labor= 5,735 $749,761

Additional Services and Direct Expenses

Topographic Surveying & ROW Mapping (Landtech)= $177,560

Geotechnical Investigations (Sub Terracon)= $25,800

Geotechnical Coordination= $2,580

$8,649

Tree Protection Plan (if needed, Sub Burditt)= $5,650

Tree Protection Coordination (if needed)= $565

Reproduction= $8,000

Total Additional Expenses= $228,804

Total Fee (not to exceed) $978,565

Description: Bryan Road from FM 2218 to 760 ft East of Spacek Rd and 1,600 

ft of Spacek Road. Total LF of improved pavement is approx. 8,400 ft

ATTACHMENT B

Traffic Signal Warrant Study at FM 2218 and Bryan Road 

Realignment Intersection (if needed, Landtech)=

5/14/2015



ID Task 
Mode

Task Name Duration Start Finish

1 Notice to Proceed 0 days Mon 6/1/15 Mon 6/1/15

2 Data Collection and Site Reconnaissance 1 day Mon 6/1/15 Mon 6/1/15

3 Topographic Survey 25 days Mon 6/1/15 Fri 7/3/15

4 Geotechnical services 30 days Mon 6/1/15 Fri 7/10/15

5 ROW Survey and Mapping 60 days Mon 6/1/15 Fri 8/21/15

6 Final Design 170 days Mon 6/29/15 Fri 2/19/16

7 30% Design 40 days Mon 6/29/15 Fri 8/21/15

8 30% comment from COR 10 days Mon 8/24/15 Fri 9/4/15

9 60% Design 35 days Mon 9/7/15 Fri 10/23/15

10 60% comment from COR 10 days Mon 11/2/15 Fri 11/13/15

11 90% Design 40 days Mon 11/16/15 Fri 1/8/16

12 90% comment from COR 10 days Mon 1/11/16 Fri 1/22/16

13 100% Submittal 20 days Mon 1/25/16 Fri 2/19/16

14 Bid Phase 40 days Mon 2/22/16 Fri 4/15/16

15 Construction Phase 183 days Mon 4/18/16 Thu 12/29/16

16 Pre-construction Conference 0 days Mon 4/18/16 Mon 4/18/16

17 Construction 180 days Tue 4/19/16 Mon 12/26/16

18 Acceptance Letter 0 days Thu 12/29/16 Thu 12/29/16

19 Project Close-out 0 days Thu 12/29/16 Thu 12/29/16

6/1

4/18

12/29

12/29

May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan
2016 2017

Bryan Road

Landtech Consultant's, Inc. Fri 5/8/15

wzhao
Highlight

wzhao
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT C SCHEDULE

wzhao
Typewritten Text

wzhao
Typewritten Text

















BURDITT Consultants LLC 
LAND | PLACE STUDIO – Connecting People to Place 

  
PLANNING + ARCHITECTURE + RESOURCES 

 
      

 
 

 

Mail:                                                                                                    www.burditt.com                            Houston 281-447-2111 

P. O. Box 1424                   310 Longmire                                                                                                  Conroe    936-756-3041 

Conroe, Texas 77305       Conroe, Texas  77304                                                                                        Fax         936-539-3240 

May 13, 2015 
 
 
 

                                                    SENT VIA EMAIL: wzhao@LandTech-Inc.com 
 

 
 
 
Wade Zhao, PhD., P.E. 
Landtech Consultants, Inc. 
2525 North Loop West, Suite 300 
Houston, TX.  77008 
 
RE: Proposal for Urban Forestry Services   

Bryan Road Reconstruction; Tree Protection Plan, Rosenberg Texas 
  
Dear Dr. Zhao: 

 
Per your request, please accept this letter as our proposal for Urban Forestry Consulting 

Services to provide Landtech Consultants, Inc. (Client) with Tree Protection Plan services.  
Burditt will provide all consulting, labor, and materials necessary to complete items detailed in 
our proposal.  Burditt is prepared to provide Urban Forestry Services in a manner that is best 
suited to the needs of client and the City of Rosenberg requirements. 

 
We understand the project involves the proposed widening from two lane undivided 

roadway to four lane boulevard of Bryan Road from FM 2218 to approximately 760 feet east of 
Spacek Road and Spacek Road from Bryan Road to South of Herbie Drive. The project 
includes realigned extension of Bryan Road at west end to intersect FM 2218 and align with 
existing Bryan Road west of FM 2218. The intersection at Bryan Road and Spacek Road is to 
be converted from a T-intersection into a four-legged intersection with northbound approach 
added. The project also includes replacement of existing single bridge over Dry Creek Bayou 
with twin bridges. The alignment length for Bryan Road is approximately 6,800 feet and for 
Spacek Road is approximately 1,600 feet. The total length of the project is approximately 8,400 
feet. 
 

If this meets with your approval, we are prepared to proceed upon completion of a 
mutually approved professional services agreement, written Notice to Proceed, and receipt of 
engineering documents. Certificates of Insurance will be sent to you directly from our Insurance 
Company. Thank you for the opportunity to provide this proposal.  We look forward to 
continuing our services to you on this project. 
 
 
 

http://www.burditt.com/
mailto:wzhao@LandTech-Inc.com


Proposal for Services   Page 2                           5/13/15 
Burditt Consultants, LLC   

 
FEES 
 
 
Fees for providing services, as described in attached Exhibit A and B and subject to the Terms 
and Conditions attached hereto, are: 
 
 
Tree Protection Plan ………………………..……………….………………  $ 5,650.00 
 
 
 
       Respectfully, 

                                                                      
       Wanda Collins 
       Vice President 
 
WC/psh 
 
Enclosures:  3 – Exhibit A –  Project Limits 
     Exhibit B –  Scope of Services 
     Terms and Conditions  
 
 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 
Urban Forestry 
 
 
 
Tree Protection Plan ……………………..………………………..………..$5,650.00 
 
LANDTECH CONSULTANTS, INC. 
 
 
BY: ___________________________________ DATE: __________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Proposal for Services   Page 3                           5/13/15 
Burditt Consultants, LLC   

 
Exhibit A – Project Limits 

 
We understand the project involves the proposed widening from two lane undivided 
roadway to four lane boulevard of Bryan Road from FM 2218 to approximately 760 feet 
east of Spacek Road and Spacek Road from Bryan Road to South of Herbie Drive. The 
project includes realigned extension of Bryan Road at west end to intersect FM 2218 
and align with existing Bryan Road west of FM 2218. The intersection at Bryan Road 
and Spacek Road is to be converted from a T-intersection into a four-legged 
intersection with northbound approach added. The project also includes replacement of 
existing single bridge over Dry Creek Bayou with twin bridges. The alignment length for 
Bryan Road is approximately 6,800 feet and for Spacek Road is approximately 1,600 
feet. The total length of the project is approximately 8,400 feet. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Proposal for Services   Page 4                           5/13/15 
Burditt Consultants, LLC   

 
Exhibit B – Scope of Services 

 
 

Urban Forestry Scope of Services – Burditt will provide the following necessary services to 
ensure both a successful project as well as the greatest opportunity for survival of the subject 
trees: 
 

A.  Site Assessment 
 

1. Tree Inventory– Evaluate the project site to assess general tree conditions, potential 
tree preservation problems, tree species and sizes determination of accurate tree 
canopies, bore pit placement, required equipment clearances and potential 
transplant trees.   

. 
 

B. Tree Protection Plan Development (CAD Format)   
 

 
1. Design Review – Review of construction documents to determine any areas of 

conflict between the design and tree preservation.  Review will include the following 
potential impacts: 

i. Demolition and reconstruction locations 
ii. New construction locations 
iii. Open pit or trench locations 
iv. Construction document specifications 
v. Methods of installation 
vi. Excavation areas behind existing curbs 

 
2. Burditt will develop a Tree Preservation Plan for inclusion in the construction 

documents. These CAD drawn documents will include all specification and detail 
drawings, an estimated budget for treatments, and a schedule of the treatments. 
Plans and specifications will be provided at 60%, 90% and 100% submittal levels.  

 
 Deliverables:  Tree Protection Plan (CAD Format) 
   Tree Protection Treatments and Budget 
   Tree Protection Specifications and Details 

  
 

C.  Finalization of Documents 
 
 Burditt will provide one (1) meeting with client to finalize and sign off on the preservation 

documents. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Proposal for Services   Page 5                           5/13/15 
Burditt Consultants, LLC   

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

ADDITIONAL SERVICES 
 

Any changes to the base data, or additional meetings or services relating to this matter will be provided 
with prior authorization from Client.  Additional meetings and services beyond those provided in “Scope 
of Services” will require a request and approval for these services in writing and will be billed at Burditt’s 
standard hourly rates. 

 
PAYMENT OF FEES 

 
Invoices shall be forwarded monthly or upon completion of the various Project phases.  Invoices are due 
and payable, in Conroe, Texas, within 7 days of Client’s receipt of payment by City of Rosenberg.   

 
REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES 

 
Necessary reimbursable expenses are included in the lump sum fee.   

  
TO BE PROVIDED BY CLIENT 

 
1. Engineering base site plans (Autodesk DWG  format) 
2. Topo survey 

 
INDEMNIFICATION 
 
Client shall indemnify and hold harmless Burditt Consultants, LLC and all of its personnel from and 
against any and all claims, damages, losses and expenses (including reasonable attorney fees) arising 
out of or from the performance of services, provided that any such claims, damage, loss or expense is 
caused in whole or in part by the negligent act or omission and/or strict liability of the Client, anyone 
directly or indirectly employed by the Client (except Burditt) or anyone for whose acts any of them may 
be liable.   
 
 
 









johnm
Rectangle

johnm
Rectangle



cynthias
Rectangle



cynthias
Rectangle



KAYES
Rectangle



KAYES
Rectangle



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
May 19, 2015 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

6 
Resolution No. R-1920 - Awarding Bid No. 2015-06 for Construction of FM 
2977 Elevated Water Storage Tank   

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1920, a Resolution awarding Bid No. 2015-06 for 
construction of FM 2977 Elevated Water Storage Tank; and, authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and 
execute, for and on behalf of the City, appropriate documents and/or agreements regarding same.  

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[X] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[   ] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[X] Yes  [   ] No  [   ] N/A 

Source of Funds:   

523-0000-600-7031 (CP1504) 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[X] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 

1. Bid Summary Form 
2. Proposal 
3. Resolution No. R-1920 
4. Kalkomey Correspondence – 05-08-15 
5. Location Map 
6. GRP Project Schedule 
7. Resolution No. R-1801 – 06-17-14 
8. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 06-17-14 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 

 
John Maresh 
Assistant City Manager of 
Public Services 

Reviewed by:   

[X] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services  
[   ] City Attorney     
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other)      

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Bids were received on Wednesday, May 6, 2015, for Bid No. 2015-06 for construction of the FM 2977 
(Minonite Road) Elevated Water Tank (Project). A total of three (3) bids were opened and tabulated as 
indicated on the attached bid summary form.  
 
Staff recommends Bid No. 2015-06 be awarded to Landmark Structures, for the base bid in the amount of 
$3,187,000.00 for construction of a 1.5 million gallon composite elevated tank. The composite tank 
structure will consist of concrete support walls with a welded steel tank. The attached correspondence from 
Charles Kalkomey, Project Engineer, recommends same. Should the bid be awarded as recommended, 
the proposal from Landmark Structures will be attached and serve as Exhibit “A” to Resolution No. R-1920. 
The contract time is 510 calendar days.  
 
This Project is included in the FY2015 Capital Improvement Plan approved by City Council on June 17, 
2014. The Project is also a part of the City’s approved Groundwater Reduction Plan and will be an 
essential element necessary to receive, store and blend the alternative surface water source into the 
distribution system. The elevated tank will also help maintain water pressure and storage capacity 
necessary to comply with the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) water system design 
criteria. The tank will be constructed on City-owned property located immediately behind Fire Station No. 3.



  
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1920 which will award Bid No. 2015-06 and provide 
authorization for the City Manager to negotiate and execute all required documents necessary to facilitate 
the Agreement. 
 



\\primary\shared\CURRENT AGENDA\Agenda - CCC Forms\2015\05-19-15\R-1920 - Awarding Bid 2015-06 Construction of FM 2977 Elevated Water Storage 
Tank\working docs\Bid 2015-06 Summary Form-  FM 2977 Elevated Water Storage Tank.doc 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
BID NO. 

 
COMPANY 

 
TOTAL BASE 

BID 

 
CALENDAR 

DAYS 
 

1.  
 

Landmark Structures 
1665 Harmon Road 
Fort Worth, Texas  76177 
 

$3,187,000.00 510 

2.  
 

Chicago Bridge & Iron 
2103 Research Forest Drive 
The Woodlands, Texas  77380 
 

$3,570,000.00 
 

510 
 

3.  
 

Phoenix Fabricators & Erectors, Inc. 
182 South County Road 900 East 
Avon, Indiana  46123 
 

$3,581,400.00 
 

510 
 
 

  
*Base Bid Summary includes only Base 
Bids, please see Bid Tabulation attached 
to Charles Kalkomey correspondence for 
Alternate Bids. 

 

 
 

 
 

 
BASE BID SUMMARY 

Bid No. 2015-06 
FM 2977 Elevated Water Storage Tank 































 
RESOLUTION NO. R-1920 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AWARDING BID NO. 2015-06 FOR 
CONSTRUCTION OF FM 2977 ELEVATED WATER STORAGE TANK; 
AND, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO NEGOTIATE AND 
EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, 
TEXAS, APPROPRIATE DOCUMENTS AND/OR AGREEMENTS 
REGARDING SAME. 

 
*  *  *  *  * 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 

Section 1. The approval and award of Bid No. 2015-06 to 

____________________________, in the amount of $__________________ for 

construction of the FM 2977 elevated water storage tank. 

Section 2. The City Manager is hereby authorized to negotiate and execute 

any documentation necessary to facilitate said project. 

Section 3.   A copy of the Proposal is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and made 

a part hereof for all purposes. 

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________ 2015.  

ATTEST:      APPROVED: 

 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, TRMC, City Secretary  Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 
 







johnm
Callout
Elevated Water Tank Location

johnm
Callout
Fire Station No. 3

johnm
Callout
Summer Lakes

johnm
Callout
Water Plant No. 6

johnm
Callout
Reading Road

johnm
Callout
I-69 / US 59

johnm
Callout
FM 2977 - Minonite Road



johnm
Rectangle





johnm
Rectangle



cynthias
Rectangle



cynthias
Rectangle



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
May 19, 2015  
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

7 
Resolution No. R-1969 - Amendment No. 1 to Municipal Maintenance 
Agreement  

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1969, authorizing the City Manager to execute, for and 
on behalf of the City, Amendment No. 1 to the Municipal Maintenance Agreement, by and between the 
City and the State of Texas, acting through the Texas Department of Transportation, for permission to 
provide supplemental right-of-way mowing and litter removal. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[X] Yes  [   ] No  [  ] N/A 

Source of Funds:  

RDC 

[X] District 1 
[X] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[X] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 

1. Resolution No. R-1969 
2. Exhibit “B” to Amendment No. 1 – Supplemental Mowing of State Right-of-Way 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 

 
 
Rigo Calzoncin 
Public Works Director 

Reviewed by:   
 
[X] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[X] Asst. City Manager of Public Services  
[X] City Attorney DNRBHZ/rl    
[   ] City Engineer 
[X] Director of Economic Development 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
  
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

On April 13, 1999, the City and the State of Texas, through the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) 
entered into a Right-of-Way Maintenance Agreement (Agreement) which provided the City with permission to 
perform supplemental right-of-way (ROW) mowing and litter control in certain areas along U.S. 59/I-69, from FM 
762 to just beyond Bamore Road. The purpose and intent is to provide additional mowing and litter removal 
services above the level provided by TxDOT in an effort to project a clean, neat and positive image of 
Rosenberg. This in turn will help promote economic development and encourage the traveling public to stop and 
shop in Rosenberg.   
 
Proposed Amendment No. 1, attached to Resolution No. R-1969 as Exhibit “A”, would extend the term of said 
Agreement for five (5) years and would revise the ROW areas where TxDOT has agreed to allow supplemental 
mowing and litter control by the City.  Exhibit “B” to Amendment No. 1 has been included as a separate 
supporting document to show the revised area. The revised area now includes U.S. 59/I-69 from FM 762 to the 
Rosenberg City Limits, which is approximately one (1) mile southwest of Daily Road, and the portion of FM 2218 
located within the City Limits from approximately Town Center Boulevard to Koeblen Road.  
 
The Agreement allows the City to provide the supplemental mowing and litter control if it so desires, but does not 
obligate the City to provide said supplemental services. The City is the entity in which TXDOT must enter into 
the Agreement with. In previous years, the Rosenberg Development Corporation (RDC) has provided the 
supplemental mowing and litter control services. 
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1969 as presented.  
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-1969 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
EXECUTE AN AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO THE MUNICIPAL 
MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY 
OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS AND THE STATE OF TEXAS, ACTING 
THROUGH THE TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORATION, FOR 
PERMISSION TO PROVIDE SUPPLEMENTAL RIGHT-OF-WAY 
MOWING AND LITTER REMOVAL.  
 

*  *  *  *  * 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 
 
 Section 1. The City Council of the City of Rosenberg hereby authorizes the 

City Manager to negotiate and execute an Amendment No. 1 to the Municipal 

Maintenance Agreement for permission to provide supplemental right-of-way mowing 

and litter removal.  

 Section 2. A copy of said Amendment is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and 

made a part hereof for all purposes. 

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________ 2015. 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, CITY SECRETARY   Vincent M. Morales, Jr., MAYOR 
 
 



     
 
     
               
    

 Page 1 of 4 Revised 09/18/14 

 
 

STATE OF TEXAS § 
 
COUNTY OF TRAVIS § 
 

MUNICIPAL MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT 
AMENDMENT #_1__ 

 
THIS AMENDMENT is made by and between the State of Texas, acting through the Texas 
Department of Transportation, called the State, and the City of Rosenberg hereinafter called the Local 
Government. 
 
 

W I T N E S S E T H 
 
WHEREAS, the State and the Local Government executed a contract on April 6, of 1999 to effectuate 
their agreement to renew a five year extension; and, 
 
WHEREAS, it has become necessary to amend that contract; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the mutual covenants and agreements 
of the parties, the State and the Local Government do agree as follows: 
 
 

A G R E E M E N T 
 
1. Description of Amended Items 
 

WHEREAS, the Local Government has requested a five year extension on the said agreement as 
shown on Exhibit A 
 
WHEREAS, the Local Government has requested State permission to provide supplemental right-
of-way mowing and litter removal in addition to that provided by the State, on US 59/IH69 from FM 
762 southwest to the City Limit line located approximately 5,000 feet southwest of Daily Road as 
shown on the attached Exhibit B and FM 2218 from the City Limit line located approximately 1,500 
feet south of Koeblen Road to the City Limit line located approximately 1,000 feet north of Town 
Center Boulevard as shown on Exhibit B. 
 
All other provisions of the original contract are unchanged and remain in full force and effect. 

 
2.  Signatory Warranty 

Each signatory warrants that the signatory has necessary authority to execute this agreement on 
behalf of the entity represented. 

 
 

reneel
Text Box
Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-1969



     
 
     
               
    

 Page 2 of 4 Revised 09/18/14 

THIS AGREEMENT IS EXECUTED by the State and the Local Government in duplicate. 
 
 
THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT 
 
_________________________________ 
Signature 
 
_________________________________ 
Typed or Printed Name 
 
_________________________________ 
Title  
 
_________________________________ 
Date 
 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS 
 
_________________________________ 
District Engineer 
Texas Department of Transportation 
  
_________________________________ 
Date 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT A

Exhibit "A" to Amendment 1 
Page 1 of 12



Exhibit "A" to Amendment 1 
Page 2 of 12



Exhibit "A" to Amendment 1 
Page 3 of 12



Exhibit "A" to Amendment 1 
Page 4 of 12



Exhibit "A" to Amendment 1 
Page 5 of 12



Exhibit "A" to Amendment 1 
Page 6 of 12



Exhibit "A" to Amendment 1 
Page 7 of 12



Exhibit "A" to Amendment 1 
Page 8 of 12



Exhibit "A" to Amendment 1 
Page 9 of 12



Exhibit "A" to Amendment 1 
Page 10 of 12



Exhibit "A" to Amendment 1 
Page 11 of 12



Exhibit "A" to Amendment 1 
Page 12 of 12



EXHIBIT B 

 

reneel
Text Box
Exhibit "B" to Amendment 1



EXHIBIT B 

 

reneel
Text Box
Exhibit "B" to Amendment 1



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
May 19, 2015 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

8 Ordinance No. 2015-17 – Masonry Standards 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Ordinance No. 2015-17, an Ordinance amending the Code of Ordinances 
by amending Chapter 6 – Buildings and Building Regulations, Article XVII - Single-Family and Accessory 
Dwelling Units; Sections 6-425 Definitions and 6-426 Single-family Dwelling Units; repealing all ordinances 
or parts of ordinances inconsistent or in conflict herewith; providing for severability; and providing an effective 
date. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:  N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[X] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 

 
1. Ordinance No. 2015-17 – Redlined  
2. Ordinance No. 2015-17 
3. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 01-27-15 
4. Planning Commission Meeting Minute Excerpt – 10-15-14  
5. Planning Commission Meeting Minute Excerpt – 07-16-14  

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 

 

Travis Tanner, AICP 
Executive Director of 
Community Development 
 

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services 
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services   
[X] City Attorney  DNRBHZ/rl   
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
  
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

This Agenda item provides for amendments to Chapter 6 of the Code of Ordinances relating to minimum 
masonry standards for single-family residential construction in new subdivisions within the City Limits.  Over 
the last several months, the Planning Commission (Commission) and City Council have discussed a number 
of possible amendments to Chapter 6 including this particular Amendment.  Chapter 6 generally relates to 
Building and Building Regulations, and the specific proposed Amendment would be found under the Single-
Family Residential Dwelling Standards (Article XVII).  Attached are proposed revisions to the Ordinance, 
which staff will cover in detail at the City Council meeting.  Additional background information on the Agenda 
item is provided below. 
 
On July 16, 2014, the Commission received a presentation from the Texas Masonry Council explaining the 
benefits of masonry planning policies or ordinances requiring a minimum percentage of masonry on 
residential and/or nonresidential structures.  The Commission had previously expressed interest in such 
policies, noting the amount of HardiPlank siding on homes in new subdivisions, and concerns regarding 
maintenance.  Among the benefits of masonry planning policies that were discussed were that masonry 
products generally are lower maintenance, result in increased home values, are more durable, and provide 
for more predictability of development or architectural control.  That being said, on October 15, 2014, the 



Commission recommended approval to City Council of an Ordinance Amendment that would require homes 
on lots platted after the effective date of the Ordinance to generally have a minimum of seventy-five (75) 
percent masonry exterior. 
 
Staff has further refined the proposed Amendment to seventy-five (75) percent masonry exterior for one (1) 
story structures and fifty (50) percent for two (2) stories and above.  If adopted, this would not apply to 
existing subdivisions or development, or to any homes built in the Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ); it would 
only apply to homes constructed in future subdivisions within the City with two (2) or more lots.  Further, the 
reason this item only pertains to single-family residential is that there is an existing minimum standard in the 
Code of Ordinances for multi-family; additionally, most new commercial construction for which a masonry 
standard would be appropriate is already regulated by the West Fort Bend Management District, which has 
strict masonry standards. 
 
City staff believes this Ordinance would benefit the quality of future development in the City without affecting 
existing development or homeowners.  Staff recommends approval of Ordinance No. 2015-17. 

 



 

 

Page 1 of 3 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-17 
 

 AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY 
OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AMENDING CHAPTER 6 BUILDING AND 
BUILDING REGULATIONS, ARTICLE XVII SINGLE-FAMILY AND 
ACCESSORY DWELLING UNITS, SECTIONS 6-425 DEFINITIONS AND 6-
426 SINGLE-FAMILY DWELLING UNITS; REPEALING ALL 
ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF ORDINANCES INCONSISTENT OR IN 
CONFLICT HEREWITH; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, Tex. Loc. Gov’t Code Chapter 211 authorizes the City of Rosenberg 

to adopt rules and regulations regarding land use within the City limits of the City of 
Rosenberg for the purpose of promoting the safe, orderly, and healthful development 
of the City; and  

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Texas finds that the promotion 
of public safety through the establishment of high-quality construction standards is beneficial 
to the community; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, has determined that 
that high quality development results in longevity, durability and sustainability that 
strengthens the local tax base of the community; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, has determined that 
it is in the best interest of the public and in support of the health, safety, morals, and 
general welfare of the citizens of the City that the Building Code regulations relative 
to subdivision masonry standards, be established as hereinafter stated.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG: 
 
 Section 1. The facts and matters set forth in the preamble of this Ordinance are 

hereby found to be true and correct. 

 
 Section 2. That the Code of Ordinances of the City of Rosenberg, Chapter 6 – 

Buildings and Ruilding Regulations, Article XVII Single-Family and Accessory Dwelling 

Units, Section 6-425 Definitions and 6-426 Single Family dwelling units are hereby 

amended by including the additional language as follows: 

 



 

 

Page 2 of 3 

 

“Sec. 6-425. - Definitions.  

The following definitions shall be applicable to the terms and provisions as used in this 
article:  

Accessory dwelling unit shall mean a subordinate structure that is located on the 
same lot, tract, or parcel of land as the main structure, which is incidental to the use of 
the main structure.  

Estate lot shall mean a residential lot, tract, or parcel of land containing three (3) acres 
or greater.  

Exterior shall mean the façade of the building not including windows or doors. 

Masonry shall mean brick, stone, real stucco or a combination thereof and shall not 
include exterior insulation and finishing system (EIFS), hardiplank or any other material 
not specifically provided for in this definition. 

Single-family dwelling unit shall mean a building containing one (1) dwelling unit that 
is designed to be occupied by one (1) family.  

Sec. 6-426. - Single-family dwelling units.  

(1) There shall be only one (1) single-family dwelling unit permitted per platted lot, 
tract, or parcel of land.  

(2) Single-family dwellings in subdivisions consisting of two (2) or more lots, and for 
which a completed land plan, preliminary plat, or final plat application has not 
been submitted to the City of Rosenberg prior to the effective date of this 
ordinance, shall consist of a minimum of: 

(a) Seventy-five (75) percent masonry exterior for structures that are one (1) story 
in height 

(b) Fifty (50) percent masonry exterior for structures that are two (2) stories and 
above in height.” 

 Section 3. All ordinances or parts inconsistent or in conflict herewith are, to the 

extent of such inconsistency or conflict, hereby repealed. 

 Section 4. In the event any clause phrase, provision, sentence, or part of this 

Ordinance or the application of the same to any person or circumstances shall for any 

reason be adjudged invalid or held unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, it 

shall not affect, impair, or invalidate this Ordinance as a whole or any part or provision 

hereof other than the part declared to be invalid or unconstitutional; and the City Council of 

the City of Rosenberg, Texas, declares that it would have passed each and every part of 



 

 

Page 3 of 3 

 

the same notwithstanding the omission of any such part thus declared to be invalid or 

unconstitutional, whether there be one or more parts. 

 Section 5. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its passage, 

approval and publication as provided by law.  Any non-conforming buildings existing at the 

time of enactment of this ordinance are exempt from the provisions of this ordinance. 

PASSED AND APPROVED by a vote of _______ “ayes” in favor and _______ 

“noes” against on this first and final reading in full compliance with the provisions of 

Section 3.10 of the Charter of the City of Rosenberg on the _______ day of 

________________ 2015. 

 

ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary    Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
       
Scott M. Tschirhart, CITY ATTORNEY 
Denton Navarro Rocha Bernal Hyde & Zech, P.C. 



ORDINANCE NO. 2015-17 
 

 AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY 
OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AMENDING CHAPTER 6 BUILDING AND 
BUILDING REGULATIONS, ARTICLE XVII SINGLE-FAMILY AND 
ACCESSORY DWELLING UNITS, SECTIONS 6-425 DEFINITIONS AND 6-
426 SINGLE-FAMILY DWELLING UNITS; REPEALING ALL 
ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF ORDINANCES INCONSISTENT OR IN 
CONFLICT HEREWITH; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, Tex. Loc. Gov’t Code Chapter 211 authorizes the City of Rosenberg 

to adopt rules and regulations regarding land use within the City limits of the City of 
Rosenberg for the purpose of promoting the safe, orderly, and healthful development 
of the City; and,  

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, finds that the 
promotion of public safety through the establishment of high-quality construction standards 
is beneficial to the community; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, has determined that 
that high quality development results in longevity, durability and sustainability that 
strengthens the local tax base of the community; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, has determined that 
it is in the best interest of the public and in support of the health, safety, morals, and 
general welfare of the citizens of the City that the Building Code regulations relative 
to subdivision masonry standards, be established as hereinafter stated.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG: 
 
 Section 1. The facts and matters set forth in the preamble of this Ordinance are 

hereby found to be true and correct. 

 
 Section 2. That the Code of Ordinances of the City of Rosenberg, Chapter 6 – 

Buildings and Ruilding Regulations, Article XVII Single-Family and Accessory Dwelling 

Units, Section 6-425 Definitions and 6-426 Single Family dwelling units are hereby 

amended by including the additional language as follows: 



2 
 

“Sec. 6-425. – Definitions. 
 

* * * 
Exterior shall mean the façade of the building not including windows or doors. 

 
Masonry shall mean brick, stone, real stucco or a combination thereof and shall not 

include exterior insulation and finishing system (EIFS), hardiplank or any other material 
not specifically provided for in this definition. 
 

* * * 
 
Sec. 6-426. - Single-family dwelling units. 

* * * 

(2) Single-family dwellings in subdivisions consisting of two (2) or more lots, 
and for which a completed land plan, preliminary plat, or final plat 
application has not been submitted to the City of Rosenberg prior to the 
effective date of this ordinance, shall consist of a minimum of: 

 
(a) Seventy-five (75) percent masonry exterior for structures that are one 

(1) story in height. 
 
(b) Fifty (50) percent masonry exterior for structures that are two (2) 

stories and above in height.” 
 
Section 3. All ordinances or parts inconsistent or in conflict herewith are, to the 

extent of such inconsistency or conflict, hereby repealed. 

Section 4. In the event any clause phrase, provision, sentence, or part of this 

Ordinance or the application of the same to any person or circumstances shall for any 

reason be adjudged invalid or held unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, it 

shall not affect, impair, or invalidate this Ordinance as a whole or any part or provision 

hereof other than the part declared to be invalid or unconstitutional; and the City Council of 

the City of Rosenberg, Texas, declares that it would have passed each and every part of 

the same notwithstanding the omission of any such part thus declared to be invalid or 

unconstitutional, whether there be one or more parts. 



3 
 

Section 5. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its passage, 

approval and publication as provided by law.  Any non-conforming buildings existing at the 

time of enactment of this ordinance are exempt from the provisions of this ordinance. 

PASSED AND APPROVED by a vote of _______ “ayes” in favor and _______ 

“noes” against on this first and final reading in full compliance with the provisions of 

Section 3.10 of the Charter of the City of Rosenberg on the _______ day of 

________________ 2015. 

 

ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary    Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
       
Scott M. Tschirhart, CITY ATTORNEY 
Denton Navarro Rocha Bernal Hyde & Zech, P.C. 
 



PAGE 4 of 6 * CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES * JANUARY 27, 2015

o The petition should be done first and then the traffic study to determine need.
o Change the forms from “petition” to “application” and add a date line for 

signatures.
� Scott Tschirhart, Attorney for the City stated clarification of authority of the City 

Manager is needed to more clearly define the City Manager’s authority to determine 
the area included or the location of the speed hump of the affected properties.

� Councilor McConathy asked for clarification under the “Notification/Evidence Support” 
to the wording to better describe the placement information.

� The general consensus of Council was for staff to bring the item back with the changes 
as discussed.

� No action was taken on the item.

4. REVIEW AND DISCUSS PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO CODE OF ORDINANCES, CHAPTER 6, ARTICLES 
XVI AND XVII, REGARDING PARKING LOT AND SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DWELLING 
STANDARDS, AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY TO DIRECT STAFF. 
Executive Summary: This Agenda item addresses a number of issues in Chapter 6 that have 
been discussed over a relatively long period of time.  Staff believed the best approach would 
be to cover them all in one Agenda item since all proposed amendments are found under the 
same Chapter.  Should City Council direct staff to move forward, one (1) Ordinance addressing 
all of the proposed amendments described below could be placed on a future Agenda for 
City Council’s consideration.

Over the last several months, the Planning Commission (Commission) and City Council have at 
different times discussed a number of possible amendments to Chapter 6 of the Code of 
Ordinances.  Chapter 6 relates to Building and Building Regulations and the proposed 
amendments in particular would address Parking Lot and Single-Family Residential Dwelling 
Standards (Articles XVI and XVII, respectively).  An overview of the proposed amendments, and 
draft revisions to the Ordinance were included in the agenda packet for City Council’s 
consideration.

On April 22, 2014, City Council directed staff to research and discuss with the Commission the 
regulation of parking in residential yards as well as outside display of merchandise.  These items 
were discussed by the Commission on May 21, 2014, and the Commission recommended 
approval of amendments to the City’s existing ordinances on these matters on June 18, 2014.  
The ordinance amendments in question are similar to the City of Sugar Land’s ordinance (as 
directed by City Council) and generally provide for the following:

� No parking of vehicles in residential front yards except on improved surfaces or 
preexisting unimproved driveways;

� Strict limitations on outside display of merchandise (i.e., 25’ setback from right-of-way, 
not located in parking areas, owned by the owner or lessee of the property, and not 
greater than ten (10) percent of the building area), with the exception of certain types 
of merchandise such as landscaping materials and vehicles.

Further, on July 16, 2014, the Commission received a presentation from the Texas Masonry 
Council explaining the benefits of masonry planning policies or ordinances requiring a minimum 
percentage of masonry on residential and/or nonresidential structures.  The Commission had 
previously expressed interest in such policies, noting the amount of HardiPlank siding on homes 
in new subdivisions and concerns regarding maintenance.  Among the benefits of masonry 
planning policies that were discussed were that masonry products generally are lower 
maintenance, result in increased home values, are more durable, and provide for more 
predictability of development or architectural control.  That being said, on October 15, 2014, 
the Commission recommended approval to City Council of an Ordinance Amendment that 
would require homes on lots platted after the effective date of the Ordinance to generally 
have a minimum of seventy-five (75) percent masonry exterior.  Staff has further refined the 
proposed amendment to seventy-five (75) percent masonry exterior for one (1) story structures 
and fifty (50) percent for two (2) stories and above.  If adopted, this would not apply to existing 
subdivisions or to homes built in the Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ); it would only apply to homes 
constructed in future developments within the City.

reneel
Rectangle



PAGE 5 of 6 * CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES * JANUARY 27, 2015

Finally, the Commission has previously discussed and made recommendations to City Council 
regarding the Parking Lot Standards and Specifications related to parking spaces abutting 
public streets.  The City’s Ordinance currently allows for businesses with twenty-five (25) or fewer 
parking spaces to have spaces that back into the public right-of-way.  The Commission 
believed, and staff concurs, that it would be in the best interest of the City from a mobility and 
safety standpoint to not have future parking spaces abutting the right-of-way.  Existing 
businesses would be “grandfathered” in relation to this requirement.  This also would not apply 
to the Downtown area.  The Commission recommended approval of this proposed 
Amendment on April 24, 2013.

Staff is requesting direction from City Council on these proposed amendments to Chapter 6 of 
the Code of Ordinances.

Key discussion points:
� Travis Tanner, Executive Director of Community Development presented the proposed 

amendments to Code of Ordinances, Chapter 6, Articles XVI and XVII, regarding 
parking lot and single-family residential dwelling standards.

� After discussion by the Council, the following recommendations were made:
o An ordinance is needed to address permanent front yard parking, but should 

not be so strict as to not take into account different variables for short term use.
Will work with legal and come back with a proposal for future discussion.

o Add language regarding parking spaces being used for display of merchandise.
o Proceed with ordinance proposal of 75% masonry exterior for one story homes 

and 50% for two story and above for future developments inside city limits.
o Proceed with ordinance proposal to disallow new businesses to have head-in 

parking spaces adjoining public streets.
� No action was taken on the item.

5. THE ITEM WAS TABLED.
REVIEW AND DISCUSS A PROPOSED TAX CREDIT MULTIFAMILY DEVELOPMENT PROJECT BY 
PALLADIUM ROSENBERG, AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY TO DIRECT STAFF. 
Executive Summary: Palladium USA, a multifamily residential developer, has requested the 
opportunity to discuss with City Council a proposed tax credit multifamily development.  It is 
staff’s understanding that the project would be in the Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) and not in 
the City Limits; however, they will potentially be requesting City Council’s support for the 
project, hence the discussion item on the Agenda.  At this time, specific plans for the project 
have not been submitted.  As staff understands it, the project would be located on property 
bounded by FM 2977, Tori, Rohan and Reading Roads immediately outside of the City Limits.

6. REVIEW AND DISCUSS A REQUEST FOR STATUE PLACEMENT IN SEABOURNE CREEK PARK, AND TAKE 
ACTION AS NECESSARY TO DIRECT STAFF.
Executive Summary: On December 18, 2014, at the regularly scheduled Parks and Recreation 
Board (Board) meeting, staff presented a statue request from Ms. Joan Williams McLeod. Ms. 
McLeod had previously addressed City Council on August 19, 2014, with a request that half of 
the six (6) acres of land previously donated by her family be returned.  The City Attorney and 
City Council presented reasons why abandoning the property is a difficult process.  Ms. 
McLeod revisited City Council on November 18, 2014, with an alternate request that a statue 
by guest artist Eric Kaposta be placed in Seabourne Creek Park to honor her family for 
donating land. Ms. McLeod also requested for the City to pay for all costs associated with the 
proposed statue with the monies received from the pipeline crossing the park.  Recognition for 
the donation of land was not written into the family’s Agreement, which expired one (1) year 
ago. The Board reviewed the meeting minutes of City Council and after some discussion, the 
Board unanimously recommended that a walking trail be named after the family. 

Staff has placed this item on the Agenda to receive City Council’s input on the Board 
recommendation that a walking trail being named after the Williams family to honor the 
family’s prior donation of land to Seabourne Creek Park.  

reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



 
 
 
 

 
ITEM 9 

 
Hold Executive Session to deliberate 
economic development negotiations 
regarding business prospects seeking to 
locate, stay or expand in the Rosenberg area 
pursuant to Section 551.087 of the Texas 
Government Code.  
 
  



 
 
 
 
 

ITEM 10 
 

Adjourn Executive Session, reconvene into 
Regular Session, and take action as necessary 
as a result of Executive Session. 



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 

May 19, 2015 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

11 Resolution No. R- 1971 - Paragon Outlets Performance Agreement  

ITEM/MOTION 
 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1971, a Resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute, for 
and on behalf of the City, a Performance Agreement, by and among the City, the Rosenberg Development 
Corporation, and Paragon Outlets Rosenberg Limited Partnership. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:  N/A 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[X] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[   ] N/A

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  159 (Oaks of Rosenberg)

 
1. Resolution No. R-1971 – Exhibit “A” to be provided under separate confidential cover 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   
 
 
 
 
Randall Malik 
Economic Development 
Director 

Reviewed by:   
 
[X] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services  
[X] Asst. City Manager of Public Services 
[X] Attorney JM/rl 
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
This Agenda item provides City Council the opportunity to take action on a Performance Agreement by 
and among the City, the Rosenberg Development Corporation, and Paragon Outlets Rosenberg Limited 
Partnership. 
 
The RDC considered said Performance Agreement at its regular meeting on May 14th and authorized 
execution of same.  A draft minute excerpt from the RDC meeting was not yet available at the time this 
Agenda packet went to print. 
 
The RDC and staff recommend approval of Resolution No. R-1971, thus authorizing the Mayor to execute 
the Performance Agreement with Paragon Outlets Rosenberg Limited Partnership. 
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-1971 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR  TO EXECUTE, 
FOR AND BEHALF OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, A 
PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT, BY AND AMONG THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, THE ROSENBERG DEVELOPMENT 
CORPORATION, AND PARAGON OUTLETS ROSENBERG LIMITED 
PARTNERSHIP. 
 

*  *  *  *  * 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE ROSENBERG CITY COUNCIL: 
 
 Section 1. The City Council hereby authorizes the Mayor to execute a 

Performance Agreement (Agreement) by and among the City of Rosenberg, the 

Rosenberg Development Corporation, and Paragon Outlets Rosenberg Limited 

Partnership. 

Section 2. A copy of such Agreement is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and 

made a part hereof for all purposes. 

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________ 2015. 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, CITY SECRETARY   Vincent M. Morales, Jr., MAYOR 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 

 

 

 

 

This document to be provided under separate confidential cover. 

 

 

 



 

 
 
 

 
ITEM 12 

 
Announcements. 

 



 
 
 
 

 
ITEM 13 

 
Adjournment. 

 


	Regular City Council Meeting Agenda - 05-19-15
	-- Recognition and Presentation of Plaque to Departing Mayor Vincent M. Morales, Jr., and City Council Member Dwayne Grigar
	-- Presentation of Certificate of Appreciation to Paula Warren and Donna Wall for Donation of a Rowing Machine to the Police Department
	-- Presentation of Proclamation Proclaiming the Month of May 2015 as Older Americans Month
	-- General Comments from the Audience
	-- Comments from the Audience for Regular and Consent Agenda Items
	1 - Review of Consent Agenda
	A - Minutes
	City Council Workshop Meeting Minutes - 04-28-15
	Regular City Council Meeting Minutes - 05-05-15

	B - Resolution No. R-1968 - Consent to Assignment of the System Water Availability Agreement
	Resolution No. R-1968
	Dominguez Correspondence - 04-29-15
	System Water Availability Agreement - 10-18-07
	Resolution No. R-1946 - 04-07-15
	Resolution No. R-1749 - 04-04-14
	Resolution No. R-1617 - 05-01-12
	Resolution No. R-1326 - 06-07-11
	Resolution No. R-1311 - 04-19-11
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 04-07-15
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 02-04-14
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 05-01-12
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 06-07-11
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 04-19-11

	C - Resolution No. R-1967 - Temporary Amendment to System Water Availability Agreement
	Resolution No. R-1967

	D - MUD No. 144 Refunding Bond Sale
	Page Correspondence - 04-17-15
	Site Map

	E - Resolution No. R-1957 - Drainage Channel Conveyance by Special Warranty Deed
	Resolution No. R-1957
	Rosenberg Business Park Development Agreement - 03-01-13

	2 - Ordinance No. 2015-14 - Canvassing the Returns and Declaring the Results of Municipal Election
	Ordinance No. 2015-14

	3 - Ordinance No. 2015-15 - Canvassing the Returns and Declaring the Results of Special Election
	Ordinance No. 2015-15

	4 - Ordinance No. 2015-16 - Calling the Runoff Election for June 13, 2015
	Ordinance No. 2015-16

	5 - Resolution No. R-1962 - Engineering Services Agreement for Bryan Road Project
	Resolution No. R-1962
	Project Location Map
	Resolution No. R-1801 - 06-17-14
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 06-17-14
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 10-24-12

	6 - Resolution No. R-1920 - Awarding Bid No. 2015-06 for Construction of FM 2977 Elevated Water Storage Tank
	Bid Summary Form 
	Proposal
	Resolution No. R-1920
	Kalkomey Correspondence - 05-08-15
	Location Map
	GRP Project Schedule
	Resolution No. R-1801 - 06-17-14
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 06-17-14

	7 - Resolution No. R-1969 - Amendment No. 1 to Municipal Maintenance Agreement
	Resolution No. R-1969
	Exhibit "B" to Amendment No. 1 - Supplemental Mowing of State Right-of-Way

	8 - Ordinance No. 2015-17 - Masonry Standards
	Ordinance No. 2015-17 - Redlined
	Ordinance No. 2015-17
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 01-27-15
	Planning Commission Meeting Minute Excerpt - 10-15-14
	Planning Commission Meeting Minute Excerpt - 07-16-14

	9 - Hold Executive Session
	10 - Adjourn Executive Session
	11 - Resolution No. R-1971 - Paragon Outlets Performance Agreement
	Resolution No. R-1971

	12 - Announcements
	13 - Adjournment



